HAgawval Pratash & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
508, Indra Prakash, 21, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001
Phones : 23730880/1 Fax:011-43516377
E-mail : contact@apnco.org

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Membets of Indiabulis Real Estate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeat
then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of stgnificant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated
Financial Statemeats”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatons given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act) in the manner sO required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS)) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021, its
Consolidated profit and Consolidated total comprehensive mncome, it's Consolidated changes in equity
and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Instrute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilicies in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Fithics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to 1n paragraph of the Other Matters section below, 1s sufficient
and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kev audir matters are those matters that, i our professional judgment, were of most significance 1 our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters Were addressed in the context of our

audit of the consolidated financial statements as 2 whole, and n forming our opsnion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report:

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessing the carrying value of inventory

The accounting policies for Inventories are set
out in Note 4.4 to the consolidated financial
statements,

Inventories of the Group comprise of real estate
properties (including land) are disclosed under
Note 15.

Impairment  assessment  of  inventory 18
considered as a significant risk as there is a risk
that recoverability of the carrying value of the
inventory could not be established, and potential
impairment charge might be required to be
recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
Management’s assessment of the recoverable
amounts is a judgmental process which requires
the estimation of the net realisable value, which
takes into account the valuations of the
properties held and cash flow projections of real
estate propetties under development.

On account of the above assessment, an
impairment loss of T 805.00 lakhs have been
recognized in the current year.

Duc to their matetiality in the context of the
Group’s financial statements as 2a whole and
significant degree of judgement and subjectivity
involved in the estimates and key assumpuons
used in determining the cash flows used in the
impairment evaluation, this is considered to be
the area which had the greatest effect on our
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

Our procedures in relation to the valuadon of
inventory held by the group included, but not limited
to the followings:

Obtained an understanding of the management
process for identification of possible
impairment indicators and process performed
by the management for impairment testing and
the management process of determining the
Net Realisable Value (NRV);

Enquired of the management and inspected the
internal controls related to inventory valuation
along with the process followed to
recover/adjust these and assessed whether
impairment is required;

All material properties under development as at
31 March 2021 were discussed on case to case
basis with the management for their plan of
recovery/adjustment;

For real estate properties under development,
obtained and assessed the management
evaluation of the NRV. We also assessed the
management’s valuation methodology applied
in determining the recoverable amount and
tested the underlying assumptions used by the
management in arriving at those projections;

We challenged the management on the
underlying assumptions used for the cash flow
projections, considering evidence available to
support  these  assumptions and our
understanding of the business;

Where the management involved specialists to
perform valuations, evaluated the objectivity
and independence of those specialists;

For land parcels, obtained and verified the
valuation of land parcels as per the government
prescribed circle rates, wherever necessary;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash
flow projections; and

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy
of the disclosures made by the management for
the impairment losses recognized in accordance

with applicable accounting standards.




Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition

The Group’s policies on tevenue recognition is
set out in Note 4.3 to the consolidated financial
staternents.

As per the principles of Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers™, revenue from
sale of residential/commercial properties is
recognized when the performance obligations are
essentially complete.

The performance obligations are considered to
be complete when control over the property has
been transferred to the buyer ie. offer for
possession of propetties have been issued to the
customers.

The amount of revenue and cost thercon on
contracts with customers forms a substantial patt
of the consolidated statement of profit and Joss
and management judgement 1s also involved in
the interpretation of these conditions.

The above transaction required audit focus due
to the significant impact of the same on the
accompanying consolidated financial statement
of the Group. The matter has been considered to
be of most significance to the audit and
accordingly, has been considered as a key audit
. matter for the current year audit.

Qur audit procedures related to the revenue
recognition included, but not limited to the
following:

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with respect to the
principles of Ind AS 115;

Enquiring from the management and inspecting
the internal controls related to revenue
recognition for ensuring the completeness of the
customer sales, issue of possession letters and the
recording of customer receipts;

We have petformed the following procedures for

revenue recognition:

a. Verification of the possession letters issued
on sample basis along with the proof of
deliveries to ensute completeness;

b. Verification of the collection from customers

for the units sold from the statement of
accounts on a sample basis to ensure receipt
of the amount; and

c. Performing cut-off procedures and other
analytical procedures like  project wise
variance analysis and margin analysis to find
any anomalies.

Ensured that the disclosure requirements of Ind
AS 115 have been complied with.

Valuation of investments held by subsidiaty
entities in equity insttuments

The Group’s policies  on valuation of
Investments is set out in Note 4.12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the balance sheet date 31 March 2021, the
Group held T 1,967.56 lakhs of investments It
equity instruments of third parties which are
carried at fair value through profit and loss
(FVIPL) in the consolidated  financial
statements. Any changes in  estumates,
assumptions and judgements involved may result
in material changes in the valuation of
investment and hence it required significant audit
attention,

Any  change in the fair wvalue of the
abovementioned investments will result in a
change i the profit or loss in consolidated

financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to the wvaluation of

investments held by the Group included, but not
limited to the following:

Understood the nature of transaction le
understanding the approach used for valuation
and assessing the proposed accounting treatment
in relation to the accounting policies and

relevant Ind AS;

We obtained an understanding of the
management  process for identification of
possible impairment indicators and process
performed by the management for impairment
testing.

Enquired of the management and inspected the
internal controls related to completeness of the
list of investments along with the process
followed to recover/adjust these;




Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The management’s valuation is dependent upon
the market conditions carried out by
management’s valuer, which can be difficult to
predict and be influenced by economic and other
factors.

Any errors or changes in the management/
anagement’s valuer judgement or assumptions
can impact the assessment of the carrying values
of the investment. Therefore, it has been
considered as a key audit matter.

We challenged the managements on the
underlying assumptions used for the cash flow
projections, considering evidence available to

support  these  assumptions and  our
understanding of the business;
Gvaluating the management’s independent

professional valuer’s competence, capabilities
and objectivity;

Assessing the valuation methodology used by
the independent professional valuer to estimate
the fair value of the investments;

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the cash
flows projection; and

Ensured that the disclosure requirements of
accoutiting standards have been complied with.

Assessing the cartying value of certain
outside group advances

The Group’s policies on the impairment
assessment of the advances is set out in Note
413 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, one of the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group has advanced an
interest-beating sum of ¥ 22,500.00 lakhs outside
the group of which ¥ 22,500.00 lakhs is
outstanding as at 31 March 2021 as presented
under Note 10B.

Impairment assesstnent of these advances is
considered as a significant rsk as there is a risk
that recoverability of these advances could not be
established, and any potential impairment charge
might be required. Management’s assessment of
the recoverability of these advances is a
judgmental process which takes into account the
fair valuation and an assessment of the financial
statements of the entities to which these amounts
have been advanced.

Due to the materiality of these advances in the
coatext of the Group’s financial statements as a
whole and significant degree of judgement and
subjectivity ~ involved  in management’s
assessment of recoverability, this has been
considered to be a key audit matter.

Our procedures in relation to assessment of

umpairment

for said interest-bearing advances

included, but not limited to:

ERi

Obtained an understanding of the management

process for  identification  of possible
impairment indicators and processes followed
by the management for assessing  the

recoverability of these advances;

Enquired of the management and inspected the
internal controls related to process followed to
recover these and assess whether impairment is
required;

Inspected undetlying suppotting documents
and agreements entered between the parties for
the advances made during the year;

Assessed breach in terms of these advances as
pet agreement, if any;

Obtained direct independent confirmations for
the said advances outstanding as at 31 March
2021;

Discussed with the management with respect to
their plan of recovery and review of recent
communications related to the said outstanding
advances as at 31 March 2021;

Checked of subsequent recoveries, if any; and

We checked the appropriateness and adequacy
of the disclosures made by the management for
these intetest bearing advances in accordance

with Ind AS.
o




Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Anaual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility 1s to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information 1s
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance,
Consolidated total comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; mazking judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financal controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error , which have been used for the
putpose of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The tespective Board of Directors of the companies are also responsible for overseeing financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.




Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultng from ertor,
as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the override of
internal conttol.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing out opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concetn.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosutes are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as A gOIng COMNCermn.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within
the Group, to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the
financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits catried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or

o




regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the anpual financial statements of certain subsidiaties, whose financial statements
reflects total assets T 342,577.43 lakhs and net assets of T 95,996.36 lakhs as at 31 March 2021, total
revenues of T 19,836.40 lakhs, total net profit after tax of T 4,898.96 lakhs total comprehensive income of
% 2,466.25 lakhs and cash outflows (net) of T 489.27 lakhs for the vear ended on that date, as considered
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These annual financial statements have been audited by other
auditors, whose audit teport have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries are based solely on the
audit reports of such other auditors.

Further, these subsidiaries are located outside India, whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditor under generally accepted audiring
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company’s management has converted
the financial statements of such subsidiaries from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside
India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the
management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion vide its report dated 14 May 2020.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appeats from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

{c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the audit reports of its
subsidiary companies covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies covered




under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
. Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 March 2021— Refer Note 44 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foresceable losses as at 31 March 2021.

iit. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2021.

(h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that 2 subsidiary companies
covered under the Act paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we
report that the Holding Company and other subsidiary companies covered under the Act have not
paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the vear. Accordingly, reporting under
section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of Holding Company and such other subsidiary
companies.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delht
Date: 23 April 2021



Annexute A to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 of even date.

Independent Auditot’s report on the Inteenal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of
[ndiabulls Real Estate Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), as of 31 March 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intesnal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountaats of India ("ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting tecords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial informaton, 2s
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAL prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audir to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 1s a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilicy of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion ot improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financtal statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies have, in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

femblership No.: 084964

UDIN:\21084964AAAAAO7908

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 April 2021



Indiabulls Real Estaic Limited
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021

I ASSETS
Non-current asscta
Property, plant and cquipment
Investment property
Rught of use assers
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments
Loans
Other financral assets
Deferred mx assets (net)
NON-cuITENT tax assets {net)
Other nen-current assets

Current assets
{nventones
FFinancial assexs
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Orher bank balatces
Loans
Other financial assers
Other current assets
Assets held for sale

—

EQUITY AND LIABILITEES
Equity
Equity share capital
Insrruments ennrely equity in nature
Other equity
Equity atiributable to the owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-carrent Liabilivies
Financial liabilities
Berrowings
Lease liabilitics
Provisions

Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilides
Bomrowings
Lease Liabilites
Trade payables
Total outstunding dues of micru enterpnses and small enterprises

Note

[ RS I Y]

15

985
16
17
18

108

11B

14B

20a

21

23A
25A
264

2B
23B

14

Totdl outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 24 iy
27
268
258
24

Other financial labihnes
Other current labilines
Provisiens
Current tax habilities (net)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The ing notes are integral part of the c lidated

pany

This is the conselidated balance sheet referred 1o in our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

lew Delhi

urbans Singh
Jonnt Managing Director
[IN: 06667127)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 April 2021

Chiet Financal (fticer

Place: Gurugram
Dae; 23 Apnl 2021

3t March 2021 31 March 2020
(¥ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)

241,14 347839
6,041.98 6,14088
T4.51 383511
39.28 .24
14,404.60 13,029.84
57259 1,853.65
1,738.57 5,29279
20,293.65 33,713.03%
14,464.99 20,880.44
6,360.03 6,91824
66,333.34 95,213,61
618,612.98 705,635.33
105.18 157.25
30,019.04 8,015.01
8,116.09 4,817.43
11,599.86 32,706.21
23,461.05 91,974.41
93,443.55 156,728.77
14,377.62 2441354
9,003.87 9,003.87
B08,739.24 1,033,451.82
875,672.58 1,128 665.43
5,030.77 909328
42,500.00 +42,500.00
296,693.87 304,202.24
348,224.64 355,795.52
1,146.34 1,104.74
349,370.98 356,900.26
37.805.58 98,911.9%
- 2.376.02
1,176.00 1,572.19
17.048.17 17,186.97
56,029.75 120,047.14

69,600.00 -
69.56 141406
7,215.20 3642
2284799 41,011.79
3997317 252,193.19
102.403.06 344,151.59
7,73251 723944
430.36 1,991.54
470,271.85 651,718.03
875,672.58 1,128,665.43

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mehul Johnson
Jowmt Managing Director
[DIN: D0O16075)

Place; Mumbai

Date: 23 April 2021

Place: Mumbai
Dare: 23 Apnl 2021




Indiabulle Real Eatate Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue
Revenue from operahons
Other income

Expenses
Cost of revenue
Cost incurred dunng the year
Decrease m real estate properties
Emgloyee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Impairment losses on financial assets
Other expenses

Profit before exceptional items, 1ax and share of (loss}/profit from joint ventures

Share of (loss)/profit from joint ventures
Profit before exceptional itema and tax

[ixceptional items - interest on income tax
Profic before tax

Tax expense
Currenr 1ax (mcluding earker years)
Deferred tax charge

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

[tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans
Income tux effect
Equity instruments threugh other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures accounted for using the equity method

Tterns that will be reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange ditferences on translaton of foreign operations
{Lwss)/gain on net investment hedge

Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net profit is attributable to
Crwners of the Hulding Company
Nen-controlling interests

Other comprebensive income jg attributable 1o
Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interests

el

Touwl comprehensive income is
Cwners of the Hulding Company
Non controlling interests

w

Earmnings per equity ahare {face value T 2 each)
Basic ()
iluted (T)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral pare of the lidated £ ial

This is the consolidated staterment of prafit and loss referred o in our repart of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Charteced Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 005!

Date: 23 Apd) 2021

Nate

29

31

33

34

35A
5B

36

37

urbans Singh

Joint Managing Director

DIN: 06667127]

Place: New Delbi
Date:

Chief Finan thicer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 April 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(¥ in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
152,141.75 327,078.42
14,064.20 16,283.14
166,205.95 344,063.56
24,304.66 133,804.83
87,022.35 50,988.31
520697 11,381.77
22,789.01 48,116.19
1,725.01 3.076.20
- £,395.48
17,638.62 4244423
158,686.62 298,207.01
7,519.33 45,856.55
- (158.19)
7,519.33 45,698.41
- 793119
7.519.33 37,767.22
546.41 5,032.72
6,501.07 20,623.98
471.85 12,110.52
109.51 4465
011 (4.82)
2,896.22 {3,258.25)
(46,122.81}
(2,700.32) 7,573.75
- {2,577.99)
305.52 (44.34547)
771.37 {32,234.95)
430.25 12,069.23
41.60 41.29
471.85 12 110.52
30552 (44,336.22)
.75
305.52 (44,3454
735.77 132,276.99)
41.60 42.04
71.37 (32,234.95)
010 267
.10 267

Mebul Johoson
Joint Managing Director
{I>IN: D0016075]

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 Aprl 2021

Date: 23 April 2021



Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

A Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax and share of (loss)/profit from jont ventures and after exceptional tems
Adjustments for:

Interest expenses

Taterest expense on taxanen {(including excepronal aems)

[epreciation and amortization expenses

Other borcowing costs

Empaiemens for non-current investments

[mpaicowent of inventory

Provision for expeeted loss

Loss on sale of property, plants and equipment (net)

[nterest ncome

Amorusation of detivanve balance (difference between forward and spot elemeni)

Excess provision /liabilites written back

Provisson for employee benefits

Provision for cdlaims and compensarion

Share based payment expense

Share of loss/ (profit} from joint ventures

Amounts wntten ofl

Loans and non-cureent investments weitten off

Imparement in other cursent assets

Income on fair valuation of financial assets

Interest income on amoettized cost financial assets

Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds (net)

Profit on sale of stake in joint ventures with undedying real estate business

Profit on sale of stake in subsidiaries with underying real cstate business

Net gain on settlement through merger scheme and faie value impact of assets held for sale

Profie on sale of investments in entity carrving out ecal estate business

Modificaton gain on de-recognition of lease contracts
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustmenns:
Wanking capital changes and other adfustments:

[nventones
T'tade recevables
Current and non-cureent loans
Other current and non-current asscts
Other current and non-cucrent financial assets
Trade pavables
Other current and non-cutrent financial liabdities
Other current and non currear Liabilines
Cash used in operating activities
Income taxes cefund / (paid} (ner)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and itangible assets
(includhng capital advances)

Proceeds from sale of propenty, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Maovement in fixed deposits (net)

Proceed from sale of non-current investments

Purchase of non current investments

Proceed from sale of current investments {net)

Inter-corporate loans received back / (given) (neg)

Interest receved

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities: (refer Note 52}

Proceeds from ssue of equity share capatal (including secuntics premium)
Acquision of treasury shares

Pocecds fom bormewings from banks

Repayment of borrowings to banks

Proceeds fenm issuc of debentures

Redemption of debentures

Proceeds from issue of commercial paper

Repayment of commercial papec

Proceeds of borrowings from others

Reparment of bortowings from others

Inteeest and other borrowing costs paxl

Payment of lease liabilities (nclusive of interest paid amounting to € 13501 lakhs (31
March 2020 T484.10 lakhs)

Netcash used in financing activities

3t March 2021 31 March 2020
(¥ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
7,519.33 37,925.36
22,634.78 47,939.75
960 793119
1,725.01 3076.20
54.63 17644
1,526.28 -
B5.00 13,569.67
248093
g8 1407
(5,496.44) (11,3902
- (154.67)
2,13.56) (32277
(86.93) (91.60)
455.45 7.156.33
16.11 84668
- 15814
Wi 355.46
8.395.48
- 1,132.77
(1.06) .
(83.54) (494.39)
(17397 (73377
- (78,154.65)
(4,182.42)
- (21,406.90)
- (5.0KNLENY
(398.24) (13.73)
26,710.54 8,533.57
92157.64 9594017
{22,004.03) 18,052.49
1,281.06 (17,682.63)
104,652.10 3.803.00
601,491.43 {12,537.29)
{12,651.46) (56,796.95)
{35,252.21) 20,685.37
(41,393.04) (92,623.33)
79,892.03 (31,705.60)
5451.76 (11,483.29)
85,343.79 (43,188.89)
8.6%) (92531}
20,67 93.32
24,322.20 (11,118.00)
- 31784996
- {1,B91.0x%)
22710 735.04
62,162.74 (32,877.19)
10,35817 5,995.95
97,082.25 277,863.37
- 217106
(1,39322) -
1400 43,498, 10
(121,058.08) (37,9417
500000 35,(NKLIK}
(98,209.33) (76,7910
FALEARLY 1 500,00
(8006 (203 (KLY
420,500.00 -
{355 J0.00) -
(28,067.60) (51,41.22)
71315 (207255

{179,127.38)

(189,037.71)




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
( in lakhs) @ in lakhs)
D Opening cash and cash equivalents of subsidianes acquired/sold (net) - {101,110.75)
E Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C+D)) 3,298.66 (55,473.98)
F  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 481743 61),291.41
G Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E+F) 8,116.09 4,817.43
Notes:
a) Cash and cash equivalents includes (refer note 17) :
Cash on hand - 14.95
Balances with banks - in current accounts 8,116.09 4,7177.32
Bank deposits with original maturity upto three months - 25.15
Total of cash and cash equivalents 8,116.09 4,817.43
The accompanying notes are integral part of the ¢ lidated financial st
This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
”
A

s Sungh Mehul Johnson
oint Managing Director Joint Managing Director
|DIN: 06667127) _ |PXIN: 00016075)
Place: New Delhi Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 Apnl 2021 Date: 23 Apal 2021
"

Anil Mitral 3
Chief Financial Officer Com Secrefary
Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai

Date: 23 April 2021 Date: 23 April 2021
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Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Group information and nature of principal activities

[ndiabulls Real Estate Limited (‘the Holding Company”) was incorporated on 04 April 2006 with the main objects
of carrying on the business of real estate project advisory, project marketing, maintenance of completed projects,
engineering, industrial and technical consultancy, construction and development of real estate properties and
other related and ancillary activities. The Holding Company is dotniciled in India.

During the year, the Holding Company has shifted it’s registered office from M-62&:63, First Floor, Connaught
Place, New Delhi 110 001, to Plot No. 448-451, Udyog Vihar, Phase-V, Gurugram - 122016, Haryana.

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidianies together referred to as “the Group™) in the following notes.

General information and statement of compliance with [nd AS :

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCAY), as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 23 April 2021. The revisions to the consolidated financial statements is
permitted by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company after obtaining necessary approvals or at the
mstance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act. :

Recent accounting pronouncement
MCA vide notification dated 24 March 2021, makes certain amendments related to disclosure requirements in
Schedule I1I of the Companies Act, 2013 which will be effective for financial year starting 01 Apnl 2021,

Basis of pteparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis
except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair
values as explained in relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities
are categotised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
measurement bases summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements.

4.1 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaties

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an eatity when the Group has power over the investee and is exposed to, or has nights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its powet to direct the relevant
activities of the entity. The Group has power over the investee even if it owns less than majority voting rights Le.
tights arising from other contractual arrangements. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date when control ceases. Statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income (“OCI’) of subsidiaries acquired ot disposed of during the
period are recognised from the effectve date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.
All the consolidated subsidiaries have a consistent reporting date of 31 March 2021.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

untealised gains/(losses) on transactions between group companies are eliminated. 'The accounting principles and
policies have been consistently applied by the Group.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s statement of profit
and loss and net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profic and loss balance (including each
component of OCI) is attributed to the equity holders of the Holding Company and to the non-controlling
interests basis the respective ownership interests and the such balance is attributed even if this results in the non-
controlling intetests having a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. Such a change in ownership interest results 1 an adjustment between the
carrying amounis of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or recetved is recognised within equity.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either Joint operations or Joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the Joint
arrangement. The Group has classified its investment in joint arrangement as joint ventures.

Interest in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognized at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets
of the investee, adjusted where necessary to ensurc consistency with the accounting principles and policies of the
Group. The consolidated statement of profit and loss (including the other comprehensive income) includes the
Group’s share of the results of the operations of the investee. Dividends received or receivable from joint
ventures are tecognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Oa loss of joint control, the difference between proceeds from disposal (including fair value of any retained
interests) and the carrying amount of the investment in joint ventures is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit and loss.

4.2 Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is caleulated as the sum of the acquisidon-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the former owners of the acquired entity. Acquisition costs are
generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent labilines assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their acquisition-date fair values.

Goodwill is initially measured as excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired
and labilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred and where exists clear evidence of underlying reasons of classifying business combinations as batgain
purchase, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entty recognises the gain directly in equity
as capital reserve, without routing the same through other comprehensive income.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control have been accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The assets and liabilities of the combining cntities are reflected at their carrying
amounts. No adjustments have been made to reflect fair values, or to recognise any new assets ot liabilities.




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

4.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and 1s accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Group appiles
the tevenue recognition criteria to cach nature of the revenue transaction as set out below:

Revense from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete. The
performance obligations are considered to be complete when the property is ready o be transferred to the buyer
(occupancy certificate received from the issuing authonty) Le. offer for possession can be issued o the buyers by
1ssuing the possession request letter.

The Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices 10 determine the transaction
price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group cxpects 1 be entitled in exchange
for transferring property to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {(for example,
indirect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration,
varable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

For each performance obligation identified, the Group determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the
performance obligation over time ot satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not
satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

When either patty to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

T'he costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the period
such changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the
contracts, the loss is recognized immediately.

Revenue from consiruction contracts

Revenue and related expenditures in respect of short-term works contracts that are entered into and completed
during the year are accounted for on accrual basis as they are carned. Revenue and related expenditures in respect
of long-term works contracts are accounted for on the basis of ‘input method’ as the performance obligations are
satisfied over time. In case of cost plus contracts, revenue is recognised as per terms of specific contract, ie. cost
incurred plus an agreed profit margin. Further, the Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary
business practices to determine the transaction price. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer
may include fixed consideration, variable consideration {if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

Revenue from sale of land
Revenue from sale of fand is recognised in the year in which the underlying sale deed is executed and there exists
no uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration from buyer.

Base rent and amenities income

Base rent and amenities income are recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease, except for
contingent rental income, which is recognised when it arises. Base rent comprises rental income earned from the
operating leases and finance lease of the owned properties. Amenities income is rental revenue earncd from the
letting of space at the properties for amenities (including cantecn space and business centte) is recognised in the
period in which the services ate being rendered.

Land lease income
Upfront lease premium received/receivable is recognized on operating lease basis Le. on straight line basts over
the lease term of the lease/sub-lease arrangement, Annual lease tentals are recognized on an accrual basis.




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Operationy and maintenance income

Income arising from billing of maintenance charges to tenants/customets s recognised in the period in which the
services arc being rendered. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the services are rendered as this is the
case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of ame is
required. Further, the Group considers the terns of the contract and its customary business practices to
determinc the transaction price. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (i reversal is less likely in future), or both.

Profit on sale of investment with underlying real estate bustness

Profit on sale of investments of entities in the real cstate business is recognised in the vear in such mvestments are
sold after adjusting the consideration received with carrying value of investment. The said profit is recognised as
part of other operating income as in substance, such sale reflects the sale of real estate business. However, in case
of loss on sale of such investments, the same 1s recognised as part of other expense.

Gain on fair valuation of investment (remaining stake)

Gain on fair valuation of investment is recognised in the year in which the remaining investment is fair valued
basis the consideration received for the proportionate stake sale. The said gain is recognised as part of other
operating income as there is underlying business of real estate development.

Revenne from real estate properties advisory and managenent services

Income ansing from real estate properties advisory is recognised in the period in which the services arc being
rendered. The Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration,
variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

Revenue on account of settlement of existing project
Revenue from such settiement is recognised in the year in which the underlying executed documents ate received
and there exists no uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation/ forfeiture income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on
accrual basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubttul.

Gain on amortised cost financial assets
Gain on de-recognition of financial asset carried at amortised cost is recognised 1n the year when the entire
payment is received against the outstanding balance of amortised cost financial assets.

4.4 Inventoties

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable valuc.

Real estate propertics (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and
external development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs and
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Construction materials, stores and spates, tools and consumable are valued at lowet of cost or net realisable value,
on the basis of first-in first-out method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling pnice in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale,




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

4.5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized duning the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All
other borrowmng costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and instial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprses purchase price,
horrowing cost if capitalization criteria ate met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate, only
when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the Group. All other repair
and maintenance costs are tecognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (deprociation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of
useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset class Useful life
Building — temporary structures | 1 —3 vears
Plant and equipment 12 — 15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 — 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 vears
Vehicles 8 years
Ship 13 years
Leasehold improvements

Leasehold unprovements have finite useful life and, therefore, are capitalised separately and amortised over the
lease pertod or the estimated useful life of the leasehold improvements. Presently, the estimated useful life of the
assets 1s less than the lease penod and is as below:

Asset class Useful life
Boundary wall 5 years
Water pipeline 12 years
Other iﬁfrastmcture works 10 years
Electrncal work 10 years

The residual values, useful ives and method of depreciaton of are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted prospectively, if appropniate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part imtially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset} is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset 15 derecognised.
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4.7 Investment property

Recognition and initial measurement

[nvestment properties are held to eamn rentals or for capital appreciaton, or both. Iavestment properties are
measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs ate included in
the asset’s carrving amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that furure
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recogrsed in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual valuation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

Subsequent meaiurement (depreciation and useful fives)
Depreciation on iavestment properties is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful
lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset class Useful life
I.easehold Land Over lease period
Building and related fixtures

Buildings 60 years

Fixtures 10 years
Plant and equipment 12 - 15 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adusted prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recogmition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset 1s recognised in statement of profit and loss in the
period of de-recognition.

Investment property under development

Investment property under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects are carried
at cost. Cost 1ncludes land, related acquisiion expenses, development/construction costs, botrowing costs and
other direct expenditure.

Ripht of use asset claviified as investment property

The Group has taken a land on long-term lease for which it has recognised right of use assets. The Group has
then sub-leased the said right of use assets under an operating lease and hence, this has been classified as

investment property and measure accordingly.
4.8 Intangible assets

Rewygnition and initial measurement

Intangible assets (softwares) are stated at their cost of acqusition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attriburable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended vse. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchasc price.




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Subsequent measurement (amortivation)
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a useful life of 3 to 4 years from the date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when
the asset is derecognised.

4.9 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at
fatr value less cost to sell.

4.10 Lease
Where the Group is the lessee
Right of use assets and lease liabilities

11l financial year 2018-19, assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor were classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and
loss on straight-line basis excepr where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary
costs.

For any new contracts entered 1nto on or after 1 Apdl 2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease (the transition approach has been explined and disclosed in Note 41). A lease is defined as ‘a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’.

Classificatton of leaser

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measnrement

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 1s made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurted by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of
the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subiequent measurement

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlicr of the end of the uscful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability ac the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and varable payments based on an index or rate.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the Lability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. 1t 15
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re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the leasc liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a
right-of-use asset and lease Lability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases are classitied as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Group to the lessee. Amounts duc from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on 2 straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Ininial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income,

4.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporung date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based
on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash
generating unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 1s reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
15 treated as an umpatrment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there
is an indication that a previously assessed impaitment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed,
and the asset is reflected ar the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly
reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

4.12 Financial insttuments
Financial assets

Recogrition and tnitial measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset 15 also adjusted.

St{b.feqﬂé’ﬂf measurement

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument” is measured ar the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

* ‘The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows; and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured ac amortised cost using the
effectve interest rate (EIR) method.

ii.  Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments {'Ind AS 1097
are measured at fair value. Hquity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair
value through profit and loss (FATPL). For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and
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loss (FV'TPL). The Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

iii. Mutual funds — All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss
{F\TPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset 1s primarily de-recognised when the rghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset measured at amortized cost (or,
depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income}.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and inttial measurement
All financial habilities are recognised initially at fair value and teansaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost
Subsequent to imitial recognition, most of the liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Recognition and initial and subsequent meeasurement — fasr value

A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (‘FVIPL’) if it is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial labilities at FVIPI., are measured at fair value and net gains/losses, including any
interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the hability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts s recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right io offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setde on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Net investment hedge

The Holding Company has entered into certain forward (derivative) contracts to hedge foreign currency risk.
Dervative financial instruments are accounted at FVTPL except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments. To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging reladonship tnust meet conditions with respect to
documentation, strategy and economic relationship of the hedged rransaction.

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations ate accounted for similar to cash flow hedges. The changes in fair
value of forward element is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in net investment hedge
reserve in equity. The difference berween forward and spot element at the date of designation of hedging
instrument is amortised over the period of hedge. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss on pardal or full settlement.

4.13 Impairment of financial assets
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In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for fnancial assets. The Group factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivabler

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credir losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credir risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit nisk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the
balance sheet date.

4.14 Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {(‘INR’) which is also the functional and
presentation curtency of the Holding Company.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functonal currency, by applying to the exchange rate berween
the functional currency and the foreign cutrency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost ate reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which they arise.

Translation of foreign aperations

Functional and reporting currencies of foreign operations are different from the reporting currency of the
Holding Company. In rtespect of foreign operations, assets and liabilies arc translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. The itemns in the statement of profit and loss are translated at the
average exchange rate (that approximates the actual exchange rates) during the vear. The exchange difference
anising out of the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated as foreign
currency translation reserve, in the balance sheet unul the disposal of the net investments at which time they are
recognised as income or as expenses.

4.15 Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of current tax and deferred rax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable incotne for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax trelating to itemns recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
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Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT
credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an assct, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as MA'T credit entitlement. This is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and wrtes down
the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it 13 not reasonably certam that normal income tax
will be paid during the specified pertod.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences (including differences arising on account of
consolidation) between carrying amount of asscts and liabilitics for financial reporting putposes and
corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss arc recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed
based on the forecast of future operating results of respective entity, adjusted for significant non-taxable mcome
and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and arc recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equty).

4.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term highly iquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant fisk of changes
in value.

4.17 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group’s contribution to provident fund and employee statc insurance schemes is charged to the statement of
profit and loss or inventorized as a part of real estate properties under devclopment, as the case may be. The
Group’s contributions towards Provident Fund are deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
under a defined contabution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit abligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term emplayee benefits

The Group also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -term
benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed more than
one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credst method as on the reporting date. Actuanal gains and losses
anising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the statement of profic
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses anise.

Short-term employes benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis
of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendercd by the employee.
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4.18 Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). 'The
employee benefits expense ts measured using the fair value of the employee stock options and is recognised over
vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The vesung period is the pertod over which all the
specified vesting conditions are to be satsfied. On the exercise of the employee stock optons, the employees will
be allotted equity shares of the Holding Company.

4.19Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a tesult of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the time value of money 1s material.

Contingent Liabihity 1s disclosed for:

o Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Group; or

* DPresent obligations ansing from past events where it 1 not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligaton or a rehiable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain,
related asset 1s recognized.

4.20 Eamings per share

Basic earmings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculatung diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the pertod attributable to equity
sharecholdets and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

4.21 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertzinty

The preparauon of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilines, and the
related disclosures.

Significant management fudgenents

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 1s based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be udlized. In
addinon, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties
in vanous tax junisdictions.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluaton of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requites assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assers.
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Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes i facts and legal aspects, the
Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Classification of leases The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various premises. The assessment
(including measurement} of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not Lmited to, transfer of
ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/terminate etc. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend or to terminate.

Sipnificant estimates

The following are significant estimates in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most
significant effect on the financial statements.

Revenue and inventories — The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of undetlying construction
and service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes,
claims and other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For
the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Group used the available contractual and historical information.
The estimates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such estimates is
recognised in the period such changes are determined,

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its eshmate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilization of asset.

Defined benefit obligation {DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Vanation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management uses
the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an
arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a
requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Group engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date. The determination of the fair
value of properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the assets (such as lettings, future
revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental matters and the overall repait and
condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks (such as
construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the properties
under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
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Note - 6
[nvesrment propeny {¥ in lakhs
Leasehold Land Building and Toral

related fxrures

Gross block

At1 Apnl 2010 - .

Addwkms 2500 230

At o gecownt of transmeon o lwd AR 116§ [XERC - [AL3ACH

Balance as at 31 March 2020 6,189.60 25.19 6,214,719

Addinons

Ehspusal 2319

Bakance as a1 3t March 2021 6,189.60 -

Accumulated depreciation
Arl Apnl 2000

Charge fot the teac Y 73491
Balance as ar 31 March 2020 73.91 - 7391
(haege for the vear 71N - 7
Balance as at 31 March 2021 147 .62 - 147.62
Net block as at 31 March 2020 6,115.69 25.19 6,140.88
Net block as at J1 Macch 2621 6,041.98 - 6,041.98

SPucsuant o applcabibirs of Ind AS 116 Tuases’ fom 1 Apn] 219, onc of the subswary vompany has reclasasied "Proparment for Land’ haluwe amountig © T
6,189.608 Feum "Orher non cuerenr assers” o Tnvesement propem’ The undeclyiag contract 1s e land eaken on lease by the sad subsidiary company, whwh bas then
leased 1o anorhee parey

der an opyratag kease

(1) lovesoment property pledged as secunity
None of the ahove mvestment propermy has een pledged as secunity by the Geoup

Gi) A recogmised in of profit and loss for investment property
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs}
Reneal incone {including martenance and car park incomej 13115 151.15
Less: Ditecr opetating expenses genecanng rental income (includung epar and Mantenaice;
Less: Dueecr opetanng expenses thar du nor generuee reneal income fuichiding repart and masnteoance} - -
Profit from leasing of invescment propernes before depreciation 15115 15L1L5
Less Depeeciaten N 7341
Praofit from leasing of investment propertics T7.44 pr®l)

(iii} Fair value
31 March 2021 3§ Masch 2026
@ in lakdhs) @ i Lakhs)

Tovestient property 1068591 G140 88

Thus spoke hun been ententramalhy bft bnks




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other ¢xplanatory information for the vear ended 31
March 2021

Note - 7 (Refer note 41)

Right of use assets (T in lukhs)
Building Total
Gross block
As at 1 April 2019 5,566.81 5,566.81
Adjustments dunng the year 205.93 295.93
De-recognition on account of carly termination of lease contract 2854 289.54
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5,573.20 5,573.20
Adjustments during the year - -
De-recognition on account of carly termination of lease contract 4,113.53 4,113.53
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,459.67 1,459.67

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2019 - -
Charge for the yvear 1,808.61 1,808.61
De-recogniion on account of catly terminanon of lease contract 70.52 70.52
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,738.09 1,738.09
Charge for the year 73110 731.10
L3e-recognition on account of carly termination of Jease contract [084.03 1,084.03
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,385.16 1,385.16
Net block as at 31 March 2020 3,835.11 3,835.11
Net block as at 31 March 2021 74.51 74.51
Note - 8
Intangible assets (T in lakhs)
Computer Total
softwares
Gross block amount
As at 1 April 2019 647.36 647.36
Additions 1417 14.17
Adjustment for disposals# (refer note 48) 12.27 12.27
As at 31 March 2020 649.26 649.26
Additions .36 0.36
Adpustment for disposals 0.17 0.17
Balance as at 31 March 2021 649.45 645.45
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2019 541.69 541.69
Charge for the vear 40.51 40.51
Adjustment for disposals# (refer note 48) 4.18 4.18
As at 31 March 2020 578.02 578.02
Charge for the year 3225 32.25
Adjustment for disposals 010 0.10
Balance as at 31 March 2021 610.17 610.17
Net block as at 31 March 2020 71.24 71.24
Net block as at 31 March 2021 39.28 39.28

#1'his also includes muangble assets of subsidiarics where controlling stake was disposed off during the

previous year.




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

Note - 9

A Investments - noa-current 31 March 2021 3 Macch 2020

(i) Investment in equity shares - others WNumber Amount Number Amount
Quoted ( in lakhs)  in lakhs)
Rartanhxla Power Limited (face value of 10 cachji 241,351,470 613446 241,351 470 325804
Unquoted*
Avinash Bhosale latrastructure Peivate Linited (tace value of € 1001 vach) 2100 000 1967.56 LT 197680
Good Mommg indha Media Private Lumited (face value of Z 10 cach) 2 3000 LK . 25HLIKKD 21732
Jagan Pubbications Limted (face value of Z 10 cach) 1972221 1,972.221 977.12

(i) Investment in preference shares - others
Unquoted*
Westend Propmart Prvate Limted {6 sion cumularve oprionally convertible preference shares 2 10 each) 3.350,000 - 3350 0K nr

{iti) Investment in bonds - others**

Unguoted
HIDC Bank Limited {Coupon rate §.4410) 8 878.78 & 47892
Hausing Development Finance Corporation Linuted (Coupon rate 8.45%4) 20 214864 0 2 148.06
Housing Development Finance Corporaton Linwed (Coupon rate B46%) 12 1,294.43 12 1,294 64
Housing Development Finance Corporason [innted (Coupon rate 83344 0 1.098.65 10 [ [398.82
Housing Development linance Conporation Limueed (Coupon rate 8.46%4) 7 Y 7 732.21
LIC Housing Fnance Lamited {Coupon rate BAT" 0 and face value of 1000000 each) 1 10999 " oo
14,404.60 13,029.84
Agpregate amount of unguoted myvestments {ner) 823014 2360
Aggregatce amount of quated mvestments and market value 6.154.46 325824

HThus investment {being sirategic in natuse) 15 measnred at fair riabne throngh ather comprehensive income. Vhe abore vedues mprosents the fuir radues as at the cnd of the respeciice rpurting year, Np diridends hare beew
receired from swels investovents during the year.

%ALY the 1nvestments are designated ax fare value throngh profit and loss., unfess stherazse stated.

“Feaie redne of & 1O.AKLINK) tach ninteis sthernise stated

B [nvestments - current
[mvestment in mutual funds {quoted)

[ndiabulls Lagwd Fund - Direce Plan - Growth 10518 15058
{2,242.628 (31 Macch 2020 7,762.659) umits]
ladabulls Savings Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - 6.67
[Nal (31 Maech 2020 11K} units)
105.18 157.25
e ————— ]

Aggregate amount of quoted wwvestments and market value 103.18 15725




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significam accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year eaded 31 March 2021

{

(i1}

Naote - 1t
Loans - mon cument’
(Unsecured, considered good)

Sevunty depasies

Loams - cucrent”
{Unsecured, coasidered good)
Seeunee deposits

Tarec-corporate loans anclusve ot mieresr accrued 6% 8it Likhs Jrrevious vear 23567 44 L

HThe Company does son lave any loans which are et credit impaired ocwhere fhere i agmiicant merease in eredit nsk

Noee - L2
Crther financial assets - nen-carrent
(Unsecured, considered good)

Bunk deposits with maruney of more than 12 montis finchasive of interest sceeucd 2 474 Lakhs fprevicns vear T34 531 hkhs) {eefer nore 17

Order advanges”
* Bombay srock exchange hnnted debt recovery secunty find

Other finaucial asscts - cureent

{Unsecured, considered good)

Earnest money depasic

Recarvalile aganat sake oF wivestments {reter note 48)
Ftsans to emiployees

Orher advances

Note - 12

Deferred wax assets {ner)

Delerred rax asset ansa on account of
Peoperty plant and equipment, myvestment propeeny and wtangible assets - depreciation and amormizanon
Raght oof use: o
fzmplovee benetirs

s add hease habibry

Reversal oF revenue and related conts as pee Ind A% 113
Ln

Impirment For wivestments, finana

ized margn on eventones

and non-tinancral assers

The Group b
of deterred rax asset i the near future

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(¥ in Lakhs) (T 1 lakhs)
37259 183365
572.5% 1,853.65
432493 [RULT |
2300812 U6 50
2346105 9197441
L%z A20279
345
1,738.57 §,292.19
[RL] 100
92.806.51 1533,808.31
O1L.0K 83306
131.96 476 10
93,443.55 156,728,77
12247
484.33
19,500 26 23,3335
. 601919
187.99 692 16
20,295.65 313,713.03

irabsorbed busingss kosses and unalsseelred depreciinon en wiuch nu deferred tax asser is created 45 there 1 o vonvinemg evidence which demansteares probabshn of reabzaton

Deterced tax asset s recopmined 1o the estent that i 15 preabable thar furure tasabie proties wall be available aganst shich the deduntible temporacy differeaces and carned torsand rax losses caa be

utilsed. Further tax loss

s are avalable fur offset for nasimum penod of sight years from rhe meurrence of loss

The Grogr dud not ecomrse defersed tax habibiry of 4509460 bikhs (31 March 2020 T 40,066 98 Likhs) aath weipeet to unremuted cetaned eamungs of Group subsdunes whereves f controls the
trmung of the distnbunon of profits and ir s probalile that the subsidares will nor distribute the profits m the foreseeable e

{iif) Caption wise movement in deferred 1ax asseis is as follows (2 in lakhs)
Farticulars 01 April 2019 Recognised in Recognised in | Recognised in other [ 31 March 2020

other statement of quity
comprehensive | profit and loss
NCoOme

Asscts
Property plant and equipment, investment property sl intangible assers - 69.46 - (163 - 67.83
depreciaton and amortization
Right of use assers and lease liadbilin - - B4 71 8471
Emplover lenefits 108147 {487 522.86) 33379
Interest expense - adpstment arising on acceune of Income Computanon and 38292 - (58297
Dusclosure Standands
Impacment Tor nvestments, financial and non-financial assers 1,919.20 (1,227.04) 69216
Unabsodyed king-term capual losses 208494 {2089 94 - -
Uncealised margin on miventanes 1441957 {7, 40.18) T023.24 0,919 19
Reversal of revenue and relared costs 43 per Lnd A5 115 4,688 W (8,267.73) 25,395.35
Liabilities
Dervatve assets - mark 1o market gan on denvaerce contract (L.133.03) 103303 -
Tair valuann gan on westments 1918 36) B LY -
Sub-total 58,384.51 {4.82} (17,641.42) {7,025.24) 33,713.03
My alternarive tax credic enotlement 298230 - {2.982.56) - -
Toal £1,367.07 1.82) (20,623.98) (7,025 24) B




Indiabulls Real Estate Limired
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanstory informatios for the year ended 3| March 2021

Particulars 01 Apnl 2020 Recognised in Recognised in | Recognised in other 31 March 2021
statement of equity
comprehensive profit and loss
Assets
Property plant and equipment, wvestment propeery and mrangble assers 07 83 3B 12267
deprecianon wnd amortizanon
Right of us asscrs and lease habiliee 7 - (847103 -
Faoplovee benelits 33T 01l 4037 48433
Tmpairment Forinvestments, toancial and non tmancul assers n92.16 ST . LH? )
Lnrealised nLANGN On inventon s 691919 - {0,919.19)
Reversal of revenue and related costs as per [od A% 115 2339535 . 5,893.00) 19,5000, 26
Tout 33,713.03 0.11 {6,498.30) (6,919.19) 20,205.65
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(U in takhs) {7 in lakhs)
Note - I3
Noo-current tax assees {net)
Advance meome tass includimg tax dedocred at source ne of Prercsions] 14406499 20,880 H
14,464.99 20,880.41
Note - 14
A Onher non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Capural advances to suppliers (2] 0322
Prepaid expenses HIOK B 65
Security depusts# 6,300.00 6,300
Balanices with statucory and gveenment autherings 320 87 33333
6,86003 6918.20
1o be adusted with purchase of land
B Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Mobilization advances 240213 2 RRY 38
Advance to supplers/senace provders {doubetul balance of € 309 27 Lads {31 March 20200 2 309 27 likhs)) 315693 7271193
TPrepad expenses 234 L9¥.77
Ralances warly statutory and govermment authornties (doubrful balance of 2 875.00 Lkl (31 March 2026 2 875.00 lakhs) 6,037.13 635603
Stamp paper in had 450
Land advances {doubrful advance of T 17.07 lakhs (31 March 2020 217 07 iakbs) 137707 7531707
Crher advances 26027 1,584.70
) 15,778.96 25.814.88
Less: Imparment for non fnancul assers (1 401.39; (1,401 34
14,377.62 24,413.54
Note - I5
Loventories
A Real estate properties under development {at cost)
Cost of propemes under development 1199, 46645 1,208,522.29
Less: Teanstereed to developed propernes {723,397 K6} J06,745351)
476,068.59 501,776.78
Less: Impaement of mventones (B3 L (13,369.67)
475,263.59 488 207.11
B Real estate properties - developed (at coss)
Cost of developed propertes 723,397 86
Less: Cast ol revenue recogmized till dure (381,620.22; (48945 21}
141,777.64 207,700.30
Less: Provision for expected loss (5,911 49 (5,91140)
L35,866.24 211,788.50
€ Construction materials in stock {at cost) 7483.15 563932
618,612.98 705,635.33

Noues :

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Greoup has inventonsed borrowing cost of € 3,824.49 lakhs (31 March 2020 € YUK U3 Likhs) to cost of real estane progect ander Jevelopmene. The Group
entities has cipnralised the itecexr expense relaed o specific boreowings obtained for real estate propethies under development

i} The weghted average rate of mlerest capitabizaron v 10 the range of TP 10 16.65% basis the underdying borronings of respective entines
il Y ap £ YIng, i I

(i) Tnventones amounnng 1o T HIRIB3.28 lakhs (31 March 2020 T 414,342 76; lakhs have been pledged /muoagaged as secunty tor hdnlines




Indiabulis Real Esvate Limited
Summuary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2021

)

(i)
(idiy
{iv)

&

31 March 2021 3t March 202
Note - 16 (T in Iakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Trade receivables
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Feade recenvables consideced good  unsecured EIXTERIY) ROLao1
Frade recervabies  credin impared PR 3304
ML O ROHS 03
Less: Imparment for trade cecenables espected credhe koss) DR AR 3300
30,019.04 §,015.01

Nere s Teade recewables amouminig to € 26,339 94 Likhs 731 Muzeh 2000 & L1815 Likhs) have been (ledgud/mantgaged as secunie b hatnhees

Note - 17

Cash and cash equivalents
Casl eon hand

13,
Ik depamits with orgnad muruney upro theee months

wes with banks -0 cumrenr accounrs B0

8,116.09

Naotes with respect 10 bank deposits (including bank deposits under Note 114 and Note 18) :

Bank deposits 1+ L6.762.98 Lakhs (excluding ineecest accrued) {31 March 2020 35,157 04 Likdhs) have been pledged agasrst bank puarantees and oveduaft fedin

Bank deposits af & Nl texduding meergst accnvedy (3 March 2020 3 2 873 48 Lakhsj have been ben nurked as 2 securire for servicung, of teom loan and debenmures e s

Bank deposits of T168.00 lakh (excludng nterest accrued) (31 March 20200 T 16800 Likhs) to mamtin debr serviee reserve account

Rank deposirs of T 74199 lakhis {excluding nterest acerued (31 March 20200 Z 201 62 Lkhs) have been lon marked as 4 secunty fon valued added tax regastranen, for Gee no olyecnon cerrificare nd
tor ather government authorgcs

Bank deposics of 8 5,000.00 Lakhs {excluding mrerest aceruedy 130 March 20208 § 23000003 have been ben murked ro durd PRV 45 & secunty fo Rulfill certam busmess chlgnons

Note - 18

Other bank balances

Balances warb banks - in unclzimed dividend accounts g42 337

ink deposits wath marurity of more than theee months and upte melve months

(nclusive of wrerest acerved T 136 78 lakbs (previons vear T 39932 akhs)) (refer

note 17) 11,5904 12,667.47
14,599.36 32,706.21

7 Unclamed dividend account pertans ro dividend nee clamed by equity shareholdees and the Holdimg Company does ot have any rght on the saxd money

Note - 19

Assets held for sake

\ssers held For sale {refer note 48{m) and 36) Q00387 0,003.87
9,003,867 9,003.87

(Thas pace b been iuientionadlly fff blawk)




[ndiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatien for the year ended 31 March 2021

Note - 20
A Equity share capital 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
@ in takhs) (T in tukhs)
i Authorised Number Amount Number Amount
Lguiey shace caparal af face value oF 32 cach 700,00 3,000 () FI0KALING [SALLITE)
750,000,000 15,000.00 750,000,000 15,000.00
U [ssued, subscribed and fully paid up
Lquity share capral of face value f T 2 cach fudly pascd up L35 903077 434663,576 RALARL

m

Equiry shares

Ralasnce ar rhe beginming of the vear

Akt [ssued durmy the vear

Less. Investowent i Treasory Stures ({wn shares)
Balance an the end of the year

v Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to cquity and preference shares

The holders of equaty shaees are enoitled o recave dividends as declared trom e ve e, and are enbiled to one
the Holding Compang, all pretecental amounts o any, shall be discharged by the e

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear

9,030.77 095.24
134,603,876 009324 T30.6H0.28Y 201361
IOKLIHT T

3125064 6251 - .
431,538,712 9,030.77 453,663,876 9,093.28

ste per shuare at meenngs ot the Holding Company. o the event o lapndation o
g assets of the Holdng Company shall e distabuted o the holders of tqui

shares in proporhion o the number ot shares hekd 1o the toral equity shares oubstanding as on that date A shares vank equally with regard ro the Holding Company’s residual assers, escepr thar

helders of peeterence shaces parocypate only re the exkent ol the face value of the slhares

v Demils of shareholder hokling more than 5% share capital
Name of the equity shareholder

A Masch 2021
Number of shares

Imbassy Propeny Developmenrs Prvare Linviegd
SO Infralands Private Laiouted

SO Devbuild Prvare Limired

Morgan Stanley Asia Sngapore] I7TE

63105 240

31 March 2020
Name of the equity sharehold Number of shares
Embazsy Propery Developments Privare Linured 63,045,240
SG Infralands Prvate Limied EAKAVIRELTH
SG Devbuild Povate Limited 235, LKW

Moregan Stanley Asia Sugapoce) PTE

vi Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration oihier thau cash

No shures have been issued far other than cash during the perod of five vears immiedhately preceding 31 Maech 2021

23.33,820

YU ) Juring the vear ended 31 Macch 2021, the Holding Company, through 1ts established rnust “Lickabulls Real Estate Limited — Emplovees Welfare Teust” {the *Toust™) had &1 compliance with $1B]
{Slure Based Emplovee Benefirsy Regulations, 2004 purchased s 3,123,164 Equiry shurees from the open nucket, for the implemencanon and admunistzanon of its emplovees beneiit schemes The
face value of these shares have been deducted from the pard-up share capatal of the Floldiog Company. and the excess of amount pad over face vaue for their acquisaion have heen adsted in she

ether equity.

viii Aggregate number of shares bought back

1 Dunng the vear ended 31 March 249, 26,000,000 equiry shares were bought hack at an average prce of T 170 85 per share from the open marker chrough srock exchanges using electrome trang
faoilites af BSE Linuced 7B3EY and National Stock Exchange of India Lamited PNSEY i accordmce with cecnon 68, 69 and 70 and all sther applicable provisions, it any. af the Campames Aot

2013 and SEBI Regulanon 2018 (a5 amendedy

b Dun

s the vear ended 31 Macch 2018, 3796040 equity shaces were bought back at an averape pace of 2 89 % per share from the open murker through stock exchanges usmy electromc tradmg

facdities of BSE Limuted {BSEY and Mational Stock Fxchange of India Lamired INSE m accordance warh seenon 68, 69 and 70 and all other appheable prosisions, if ant. af the Comp: mes a1,

X133 and SEBE Regulanon 2018 (a5 amended)

¢ Dunng the year ended 31 March 2017, 28,2350000 equity shares were hought back a1 an aveeage prce of 7801 pec shace from the open marker through srock exchanges using electronk radu

factlines of BSE Limited (BSE? and National Stock Exchange of Tndia Limited {NSE?) in accordance wil secrion 68, 69 and 70 and all other applicable provisons 1€ any, of the Compames A,

2113 and SEBI Regulanon 2018 (a5 amended)

ix  Shares reserved for issue uader options

Lor details of shares ceserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) on the Holding Company, vetee nore 36

B Preference share capital

3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number Arnount Number Amount
i Authorised (T in lakhs) (T in fakhs}
Preference shise capital of Bree value of T 10 cach# 304,000,000 36,404).00 364 (M0 KK 30, 4K
36,400.00 36,400.00
& Yiue the Holding Compeny by naf isied preferenve shures. hence, other dischsnrer are ol proscoited,
C Inscruments eatirely equity in nature
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
i Authorised (¥ in lakhs) {¥in lakhs)
G061 Opucnally convertible redeemable preference shares of face value of T 10 each 130,00 000 105,(00.00 JRIEIRELITLEY 135004000
105,000.00 105,000.00
it [ssued, subscribed and fully paid up
WO Optisnally convernble redeemable peeference shaves of face value of T 10 cach 425, INNLINKY 42, 300400 125 OIMLIH
41,506.00 42,500.00
ii Recoaciliation of number of optionally convertible redecmable prefercace shares sutiianding at the beginning and ad the end of the year
Halarce at the hegaueg of the vear 123,006,000 42,300 00 108 250 0001 LHLE28 00
Fess: Adpusted dunng the vear® - - {623 280.0K1; 62,328 1
Balince a1 the end of the year 425,000,000 42,500.00 425,000,000 42,500.00

1 irtug, the previons jour. Wese shares 1 eve wguerd a7 Fobling Compam anid heder. clomisaticd 1o con izt nn Litement.
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w

-

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to optionally convertible redeemahle preference shares ("G-CRPS")
0T Opnioaully convernble redeenuble preterence shaces of face value of T 10 cach fulls pad up. the parmear of divwend sl he on aon camubatee bases, Subyeet o the prosisnns of the

Compames Aot 2003 the OURPS shalt e opaenally canvertible, at sole discretion of the ssuen Lompany, an am nme incne o more seanches withm a penedd ot exceedinge 20 veans o the dare

o llormient e the price which shall be the face value of the ggquine shures o the ssuer csmpan

Subieet 1o the provisions of the Companes Aor 2013, the OCRES shall be redecmable, at cash, on the expary of 20 years G the dare b allotment, ar the lowee ot aither {5 appropriare

chscount 1o the fair vabie o the equire shares fon the date of such redemprion) of the sssuer ¢onan

neludng seounnes prentnm,  Fanyy

g, conversion, OR G ssue price of GORP:

Dretails of shareholders holding more than 5% share capital 31 March 2021 31 March 2620
Name of the preference shareholder Number of shares Number of shares

Induabulls Propedies Povate Limited 425 600,000

Aggregate nusaber of preference shares issued for consideration other than cash
Iy preceding 31 Vlarch 202(

Nevpreterence shaves bive been wsued i comsideration orher thare cash duding the period of five sears immedia

Aggregate aumber of preference shares bought back

No preference shares have been o back dutig the perod of Five vears immedurely preceding 31 Masch 2021

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(T in lakhs} (¥ in lakbs)

Note - 2L
Other equity

Reserves and surplus
Generdl eserve . 26
Capieal reserve 2770 2772050
Debenture redemptson reserve 20,875.00% 3237504
Capital cedemprion reserve 220042 2200192
share optins cutstambing account R4
DECLONCS PRTIRIT 53836107

Retained eamings 334,230 (327,942.04)

Orther comprehensive incame

Fair valuanon of equiry mstrument s {28,624 14 I3LA26 36)
Foregm cuerency reanslanon reserce 6,179 29 887961
206,693.87 304,202.24

Narture and purpose of other reserves
Geweral reserve
‘The Hokling Company w requiced to create a general reserve out of the profits when the Company declaces dwadend to shareheders

Capital reserve
The Heolding Company hus 1z
share wareants hoiders dul non exercise ther nghes.

ued share warnants i the earher vears. This reserve 1s creangd i account of forfeimure of shace applicanon money cecerved o account of ssance of shane warsnts 1

Debenture redemption reserve
The Holding Company and its subsidianes {wherever debenrure balances are outstanding) are required to create 2 debentute redempnon ceserve out of the poofits which e available fur redemption
of debentures

Capital redemption rescrve

The same has been creared i accordance warh provisions of the Comprames Acr, 2003 for the buy back of equiry <hares from e market.

Share optrons ousstanding accovns
The resery

ased 1o cecognized the expense relared o stock aptions wsued © emplywees under Hedig Conypany’s emplogee stock option plans.

Securites premiur
Secunties premum teseeve 1 used to cecord the premium on issue of shaces. The veserve 1s anbsed s accordance with provisons of the Compames Acr, 113

Recained earnings
Retained eamings is used to cecord balance of starement of profic and liss

Fuir valuation of equity i
The Holding Company andeetain subs
rve undee tive head equity. The Company transfers ancounts From tvs

shares i other comprehensne meome. These changes are

s of the Company s elected o vecoppise the fur vialue of cetran mvestrents w equi
accumulared within this res

ve o retaned camings when the rekevant equity instruments zee desceogvised.

Treasury Sharcs

The Company had ereated “Indiabulis Real Fstare Linted — Enployees Wel
purchase plin and stock apprreciation s plan. The Company treats the truse
face valwe ol the scquiredd treasury shures are presenred as a deducteon from the secune

far

Troust™ (the “Trusr™} for the implementation ot schemes namely employees stock aptwns plans, emplovees stock
i extension und the Company’s own shures held by the trust are tseated as treasury shares. The PferLm et

preium reserve The ongmal cost of treasuey shares and the proceeds ot any subsequenr sake are
presented g MoYEMents un cquity

Foreigat curmeucy translation reserve
In case ot foreym subsidiangs, revenue wems ure consolidared at the avecage rare prevading dunng the vear. Al assers and halal
R}

are convened at rates prevaling at the end of the vear. Ane

exchange dhtference ansing on consobicanon 15 recommsed m the Foreygn curreney semslanen tesene




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year emded 31 March 2021

31 March 2621 31 March 2020
Note - 22 (@ in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
A Borrowings - non-current
Sccured Joans
I}cbentures
Nem-convernble debenrires fredeemuble) (refer note i) below; 3434034 W7 RS
Lexs™ curtent maninnes of nea-current horosangs (reber oote 27 (1L,981.22 ST
22,359.32 16,2015
Bonds
Non-convertile Iwmds {eetes note 7 34,0923
Less cutrent maturities Of non-coreent botrowangss (retee noce 273 12340
. 32,958.13
Term Wans
From banks (refer nore () below) 1831029 13778008
Less cureent marunnies of nem-curreat borowings (rofer not 27) (286403 IRN325 1
15,346.26 19,752.12
37,805.58 98,911.96
() Repayment terms fincliding curreat eies) 2od tv dewils for rerm Joan frorm pon-couvertible debentures:
Pamticulars Security Maturity date 31 M.:uch 2021 3 M.“ch 2020
T inm lakhs ¥ in lakhs
1190 Redeermnable nom-convertible debentures ssued on 9 September 2016 for T Seeured by mortgage onimmovible B July 2022 1.892.07 1,886 50
1,900 lakhs @ 9 85%5 of face value T LIMOIO0 eacly propetes siuated  ar Panvel & Savroh
Khalapur hek! ancd owned by the #olding
Conmpany and its certam subsidary compames
respecnvely by way of pac-passu chacge
7 230 Redeemabie non-canvernble debenmures issued on 7 September 2016 for € Secured by moetgage  on wnmovable 7 Juk 2022 288 G0 248000
2,500 lakhs @: 980°» of face value T LML cach propertics siuated 4t Panvel & Saveoh-
Khalapur held and owned by the 1koldmg
Company and its certain subsidiary companwes
respectively by way of pan-passu charge
3 300 Redeermabke non-convernble debanmures ssued a1 August 2016 tor 2 Secured by morgage onimmovable 16 June 2022 2,98065 2906 42
3000 lukhs @ 10.00% of face value T LD each properties siugted ar Panvel & Savroh-
Khalipur held andd owned by the Holdg
Comypany and 1ts certain subsidiacy companics
respectively by way of pan-passu chage
T 200 Redeemable nom-comvertble debenmutes issued on 68 July 2016 for L2000 Secured by  momgage  on eamovable 18 May 2022 1986 68 197582
lakhs @ 10.00%6 of tace value T 1,000,000 each properties  sicvated  at Panvel & Saveol-
Khalaipur heid and owned by the Holding
Company and 1ts certain subswhary companies
respectively by way of pan-passu charge
3 250 Redeemable non-convertible debentures issued on 12 July 2016 for $2500  Secured by morggage  on immovalile 12 Max 20322 23834 246978
Takhs 41, L00P @ of Face value T LODUDMN cach propeies suuated at Panvel & Savroh-
Khalapur held and owned by dw Hodding
Company and its cectain subswhary compames
resprctively by way of pan-passu charge
6 150 Redcemable non-convertible debentures issued oa B July 2016 for 1300 Sewred by mortgage  on immovable 6 e 2022 1,490 31 1ARLK?
Laklis @ 100078 of face value T 1,00ML0M0 ¢ach peopeetes  smuated  ar Panvel & Savroh
Khalipur held and owned by the Holding
Company and ws certain subsidiary comprnics
respeetively by wav oF pan-passu charge
7 160 Redermuble non-converuhle debenrures issued on & July 2416 for T 1600 Secured by mongyr onimmovabke 6 My 2022 1,389 34 LAR0.6G
lakhs @ 10.00% ot face vabue T LOG00 cach properrics swuated at Panvel & Savroln:
Khalapur held and owned by the Tholding
Company and its cesrain subsichary compancs
respectively by way of pan-passu charge
® 750 Redeernable non convernhle debentuses ssued on 2 June 2AH6 for 27500 Secused by momgage  on wameovable ) Apol 2022 74861 7406 01
lakhs G 10 007 of Face value T L0000 cach properties sinuated ar Panvel & Saveoh
Khalapur held and awned by the Holding
Company and s cectan subskhary companws
resprenvely by way of pari-passu charge
0 3,800 Redeemable on convertible debenmures ssued on 27 June 218 for T Mortgage on immovable properties snured ar 37 June 27t L1M81 22 7371347
18,000 bakhs G- 9 30% of Dice value T L000,000 each Panvel & Gurugram held and owned by the and
7 Holding Company and s ceran subsidury 76 June 3020
companues by way of pan-passu charge
993 06

10100 Redecimable non convernble debentuses ssued on 18 Maceh 2016 for T1L000 Mozngige on immovable properties suuated ar 18 March 2021
lakhs (a2, 40 737 OF Fave value T LODOI0 each Panvel and Savrob held and owned by dhe
Hoklng Company and s certam subsuliny
comipaines by way of pan-passu <harge




Indiabulis Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatgry informartion for the year ended 31 March 2021

11 2 Redeentable non<onvertible debentures issued on 18 March 2006 for 3 2000 Morfgage on mmevaldle properties sitiated at - 18 March 2021 - 1007
Lakhs % 10739 of face value LA each Panvel and Saveoh held and owned by rhe
Heldmg, Company and ses cortm subisadian

vompamies b way of pan passo chagae

12 3,00 Redeemable nop-convertible debentures sssued on 29 June 2007 for T Secured by momgage oo mnevable 39 June 2070 - Hyaa
30,000 Tk 410 200% of Face value T 100000 ¢

properies sinured ot Gueugeam and Saveoh and
held and osened by the Heldmg Company and 28 June 2000
s certan subsidiany companies by war of pan

s churnge

© Nowionreriple debentures are dited on Wielevale Deit Masker (W 1My o uf BYE L imied.

Pl e has heew sntentomnadly &ff dlaky




[adubulis Real Estate Limired
Summacy of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informarion for the year ended 31 March 2021

(id)

{iit)
(a

-

(&)

{c

()

=)

(U]

Repayment terms {including current maturities) and security details for non-convertible bonds -

Particulars Maturity date Security deta 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{¥ in lakbs) (2 in lakhs)
Redeenuitie non-convernble boods sssued on 31 December 2019 for T 33000000 Repasable i 33 monehly sograllents of HRefer  Note | - 3190 3

Taklus of face vidue T TI00UNN each. This camies inferest sare of 10 830, YR Lakivz svatng one 31 Lanuaes 2020 andbelow
buller pavment of 2 300275 (0 Lakhs ar the end)
of M momthsDunmg che vedr ended 31
March, 2021 the comipany has repad  thel

onniee auestanding N cooveenbls bonds

* There wna comivedshle bad nere ited on the Whadale 1cht Murket szamand of BYL L imited

HNote ]

Letals of secunty ottered nsuch sulisidiary

1) Piest eanking and excluave montgage on the -
4y Unsold unirs of the progecr,

I Chargeable recen abies and the msurmce pol

) Chargrabike aceount agsers,

«d: [nber-compuorate deposirs feuerent Joans),

ance TR/ Fumnble
an o or m cennecton with the construchon amd developmens of the projecr,

i Floor space index (151, by
broch present and R
£ Presenr and furure Fved movable assets of the subsudian, company pectunmg te Hie Pereer, and

S0 eo be consumed an the progeer, and other nghts, title, benetit and nterest ansiy our of oc Toaded over” m respect o the proweet properry,

L TS

g Al present and furage cueeent assers oF the subseliany company pectaing 1o the Progecr, wcludimg withour muranen e subsidiary company’s cash in hand, stocks, taw matenals, book debrs.

inventones, clams, b all mvestments

outstandmg monies recgevab L ofther receviables ot the sulysidian: company,
{eollectively called rhe *Company Mergaged Properries
) Fies cankang and exchusve momgage on the subsidury company additonal mongage peopeenes,
() Fiese rankingg and exclusive charge by way of hepothecanon on Indhabulls Liatobsaton -
and furuee, wharsoever oF 1131, 0, to. under ar us respect of, the 1Dx
cancelled 1o the month or March 2020,

rowes Limired {IDSE] bypothecared properoes o

s, nitle, benetirs, clums and demands. present

subosdiuted debe and the IDSL transscton documents, and  TISL rode e

vabhea) however these propertes have been

and

i Frest cankang and exclusive charge by way of lypothecaron on corparate gaaantor {Hokdig Comgant) suboedisared debe hypothecared Propeines,

v} Fest ranking and exclusive pledge over the equity slures and other secunines of the subsidhary company constituting, 100%% of the rotal sssued ad padd up shace caprtal of the subsuary compans

ahong wath varing rggdhes o a fulle dibured basis), bur excluding 6 equiry shares Leld by nomuaees of the compore guacantos {pledged secunnes’)

-y terms (inchuding current itfes) and sccurity detaiks for term loaa from banks:

Durng the year coded 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had avaded rerm loun of € 10,300.00 lakhs from REL Bank Limited and interest payabie monthiy, secured by excluswe charpe by wa
of cegasteced martgage over 19 denufied unsold properties in Teaver - 4 of the propeet "BLLU 1
of land, cormman arcd, commaon amemsnes and car parks pertaming o s

vided share

ate and Club® (preyece 1n one of the subsdiaer company) dong with proportsonate us

d propernes. The loan was repavable n 12 cqual monchly snstallme
altough the entice koan hus been repaid dunng rie cuerent vear. The rate of interest was 11 3P0 pa (RBL Bank's MCLR plus spread). The ourstanding balance a3 ar 38 March 2021 0 T Nl 51
March 20200 T7715 6% Likhs)

s post the principal moratoniue perad of 6 months

During the vear 2nded 1 March 2019, the Halding Company had availed reon loas of € LIUGS0.00 fakhs from Yes Bak 1
way of equitable mortgage on wmmovable propernes logated ac various locarions
the end of 215t nwnuh, 240l month and 271t menrh from the dare of fiese dishuesement aitcugh the entire loan has been repaid during the curtear vear. The rate of interest was 090 pa Yes
Bank's MCER plus speeady. The cutstanding balance as at 31 Maech 2021 55 T 31 March 20200 T 99,350 46 Lkhis)

mted and uirerest pavable maonthly, secuced by fu

o partt passu <hiege by

nd owned by certaun subsidiry companies. The loan was repavable i three installmenes a0 30%, 33%% and 33% at

Driring che vear ended 31 March 2018, the Holdimgy Company had availed wem loan of 2 10,0068 (0 Lakhs From REL Bank Lauted and mierest parable monthky, secured by tirst pan passu crag by
way of equitable maomgage on immovable propecies kovated ar Saveali and owned by certan swhsidiany companies The loan was repavable i theee mstallments ar 20°%, ¥ o and 3y ar the end of
one year, two vear and rhree year from the date of disbursement ahough the entine loan has been repaid duning the curcent vear The rate of inrerese was 11 33% p 4 (RBL Bank's cvernughe MCLRY
ar 31 Mareh 202005 TN (3L March 2020: T 4,987.05 Likhs)

Thie coarstarsdings balunee

Dunng the vear eoded 31 March 2018, the Holdng Company bad availed reem b of T3,00000 lakhs from RBLL Bank Limited and ingecest pavable monthly, secared by excusive chasge by wav of
egutable mor ¢ compames The loan was eepayable intheey installments ar 2000, ¥E49 wd 5000 at the ead of one
vear, twi year and thiee year from the dare of dishucsenient aough the entire laan has been repaid duding the current vear The ats of interest was 1 35% pa RBL Bank's avernight MCLKR). The
outstanding haance as at 31 Maech 202115 TN (30 March 2020, 2249368 Ldns).

gt e immovable peopernies located ar Gurugram and owned by certan s

Duing the vear ended 31 March 2015, the Holdwg Compary had avaled rerm Joan ot 3 28,000 00 bakhs trom Asis Bank Lamired and nrerest pagable monehly, ponurdy sceured be mooggage on
wamovable propecties situated ar Saveol held and owned by the certun subsudary companies. The loan was Rurther secured by collateral secunne o immovable propemics of cortam subsi
comparnes Addinonadly, the afoesad teem kuan was alsa secured by way of pan passu charge on al the project relared recervables, 1 any, of s certan subsidiury companies. Fusther, there was
corpordte guatantee vaued by ats certam subsidiary Compames The loan was eepavable i 16 equal quarred
altough the ennee Joun has been repad dunng rhe current year e rare oF s
{31 Mavch 2020 T 1,585 69 lakhs).

v

nstallments after moratonum peaed oF fwe vears From dare of Fest disbursement
stwas 9.55% pa. (Ans Bank's six momth MCLR plus spread; The outstanding balance as at 31 March 202115 T Ng

Duriyg the year ended March 31,2019, ane of the subsidiury company enfered mto bosrowing aceangement 1o finance the consrruction and devek spment of the real estate project by sigung, a
Consenuction Teem 1oan arrangement wath Indusind Bank Limired( "INDUSLNL™ af € 20,000.00 Lakh as per undes mentioned table

Pariiculars # Year Sanction| Drawdown
Indusind Bank 31.03-2020 20,0000 20,000 1K)
31-03-2021 20,000.00 20,000.00 |

# Vhe rsics atre determined on the st of Bk 's MUK rate oud hank's uarggn

87 The Loan ate secored by Pavi-passu chaege by way of cegistered marngage of all buildngs & staucrures, nile and mhrs of the botrower b reswdental project "ludabulls Greens and Pak”™
wof 8731226 sqfr. Fiesr pari passu chagge by way ol hyporhecation on the project sold & v
suleable area of 87,301,226 sq.fe. and the borrower will mamtain an escrow sccount with indusind bank sl repayme
Keal
the date of disbursement o

hi able sold s

cing, sul

wables tor the readental peoject "Indubuolls Creen and Park” having

t of then For the abowesud loan comporate guacanter gven by Indiabulls

At Linnted and Drana Infrastrucru inwed {land ownee). Term Loan of 2 20,000 00 Laklt shall be repavable n 8 soouctured guarredy msralmenrs starming fromn e cnd of 33 months fom

31 March 2021 3 March X020
(¥ in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
Borrowings - current
Secured Loany
Tebent
Non-convernhile debenrures {redeemabile) (reter aore () helow) 300000
Bearowangs Mo financial mstitutons * 6460000

£9,600.00 -




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3t March 2021

1 Repavmens terms and secunre decals toa non-convernble debenrures

Particulars Securiey Maturity dace 31 Macch 2021 31 March 2020
(Lim lakbs) (L in lakhs)
500 Redeemable non<onveraibic debentuees issued on 12 Now 2020 for 2 Secured by morage on mmovable 12 Nov 2020 3000 -
330000 Lkl 20 10507 ot e value TLINNOO0 ¢ach proprernes sruated at Fanvel hekd and owaed
Ly subsscdiany compant

“Non-eonvertible debrentures are haed on Whaolesale Debr Marker (8D segment ot BSE mieed.
of the company hive avaled T 64600.00 Takhs

we progect under development and unsold developed propeoies/unes and all revenue recavabdes of

“*During the fimancid vear ended 31 Mazeh 2021, cectan subsichan

I sl

exclusive charge on resped
o ta 12%, These loans are repayalile an demand

Note - 25
A Lease liabilities - aon-current
case labilines Refer nore 31

Toan From Nemy Bk, Financial Compames (NBEC), which are secuead by
aries These loans caroe mterest tares varyng, berween

2Ven?

N 2,376.02
B Lease abihnes - current
| e libilines Refer e 415 63 36 141400
69.56 1,414.06
Note - 24
Trade payables - curremy
() Total ousstanding dues of nucro enterprses and small entegroses* 721520 17642
7,215.20 3,716.42
*Oisclosure under che Miceo, Small and Medwm Fauerprises Development Act, 2006 (*MS Act, 20067 as ar 1 Macch 2021 and 31 March 2020
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 Macch 2020
{T io lakhs} (¥ in lakhs)
0 Jrhe prncrpal amount cemaming wipind 16 4ny suppher s ar the end of each accounning year, 721520 371642
u) |Intecest due thereon -
i) Jthe amount of mierest pad by the huyer in terms oF seetion 16, alorgs warh the amounis of the payment made to the suppher
beyond the appoiated day dunng each avcounning vear,
™ Jthe amount of nterest due and pagable for the pericod of delay n making payment (which have bevn paid but bevond the -
appennted day during the vear) bur wirheut adding the wrerest specified under this Act;
V) [the amount of mteeest accrued and remaining unpad ar e end of cach accounting year, and -
wi) [the anwount of further interest termunnyg due amd pavable even n the succeeding years, unnl such dare when the wterest dues as
abave are actually parl 1o the small enterprse, for the purpose of disaflowance as 4 deduciible expendinure under section 25
The sbove miomation cegarding Micre, Small and Medum Enterprises has been derermined w the exrent such partes have been wenriticd on the basis of mforniation avalable warh the Group
31 March 2021 3 March 2020
@ in fakhs) (Tin lakhs)
Note - 24 (cont'd)
Trade pavables - current
(i} Toral outstanding ducs of ceedirors arher than eicra enterprises and small entesprises
Due o others 11053964 24.705.26
Retention money 11,788.35 16,3433
22 B4T.99 41,01L79
Note - 25
A Provisions - non-current
Prowvisian for employee henetits
Creanunty [refer note 43) 907.74 116214
Compensated absences {refes note 45) 268.26: 41001
1,176.00 157219
B Provisions - cuwrment
Peovision for dams and compensatum 761197 1156 33
Pravision e emplovee benefirs
Granuiry {refer nore 45) 017 6219
Compensated absences (refer nate 43} .37 2072
7,73251 7,239.44
Note - 26
A Other non-current lizhitivies
Deterred revenue 1054847 LGRS 41
Adhvance cecerved Ror land 1, .10 £6,501.50
17,048.17 17,186.97
B Other current liabiliaes
Pavable 1o staturory and government duthonnes 397 13 215143
Advance trom customers 283721 63 124,105.59
Deferred revenue 188.62 18R R
| rabiiliry against development eghts 5,600 10 3 600,00
Other whvances recewved# 9,000 1) 9,00 DL
Crher habibines 37035 36 ERIGRE]
302,403.06 344,151.59

# Ty the currene and previts vear, the bakance of L9000 lakhs represents advance receivid st the assers held foe sale




[odeabulls Real Estace Limied
Summacy of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3 March 2021

31 March 2021 31 Maich 2020
(% ins lakhs) {¥in lakhs)

Note - 27
Orher financial Eabilities - current
Curzenr muaruriries of Jong-term borrowings

Non-convernible debentures 1198122 3.4 M

(LR - 124y

Term koans 286403 EI8N3251
Tnreresraccomd on hormowmgs 1750 1A 23610
Usnipad drvidend on equary shuees® 943 315
Secunny deposts from custamers 7837 B4 30
Book uverdralr™ 067287 03233 2
Pagable tor nsestmenr:- . ERUCIT
Advance retuskdalile o customers§ THLOY L6224
Expenses pagabile 588102 4076 21

59,973.17 252,193.1%

“Nor due for credie to Tnveston Bducation and Protection Fund’

" Subsequent ro the year-endd, this has been adusted with loan mones recewed on 4 \pal 2021 Previous wear 03 Aped 2020 and 08 Apnl 030 The lean was proapproved betory the year-end

*Dunng the previous vear, this amount was parable sgganst paceluse of an nvestiment

O account of cancellanen of properties.

Note - 28

Current tax liabilities (ner)

Prowision for mcome tax, net o advance tas and ras deductesd af wource 13036 1991 34
430.36 199154

7

el b 15
<




Indiabulls Real Estate Limired
Summary of significant accounting policies and other exptanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
@ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)

Note - 29
Revenue from operations
Revenue from eeal sty propernes irefor miste 33j 1 ¥L,683.34 THAH23 0
Revenoe smceounr of settlement oof extsiy praject {refur noge 38 - 13,7037 00)
Revenue trom real estate properties advisory and imanagement seeviges IRk
Revenue frem s of fand 20050
Reneal and Iind e 13145 15113

416 2R3 T

Revenue from construcnon cimmracts
Other operating income

Revenue from sade of commercnt undertakng (cefer note 48(v); Lid 30000

TRA03

Profit on sale of stake m ponr venrures with underlving real estare business iweter note 8
Profitom salye of srike m s wirh underlying real estate business {refer note 44 49 182 42
Nekgan on sertement through merger scheme and fur vlue mipact of assets beld fosale Deter nore 36; Ry 1]
Profic un sale o snvestmenrs in enty carving our red estate business EXLLIECE
Incame trom ahasory services - 472
Interest income on delaved pasmenrs om cus omers 2.2 2893
Service recepts and torfeinirg income U39.33 LU 3.0l
152,141.75 327,078.4%
Note - 30
Other income
[niceest meame on Joans., bank depeasirs and others 549644 1,390.20
Interest income on other amorrsed cost finanenl assers 8160 4439
Profit i sale of nvestments i mucaal funds {nen 17397 3T
Farcign exchange pam (nen) 345828 349848
Amortisatien ot denvarive balince {difference betaeen forvard and sprot element) 153467
Excess provision/lulahines wiarren hack 2013.56 32237
Muxbhicarion gan on de-recogunon of kise conrracts 398.24 1373
Miscellaneons imcame 3911 3013
14,064.20 16,985.14
Note - 31
Cost of revenue
Cost ofland, developed properties and others 21 RU.66 13380443

Decrease i mventory of land and real estate propermesft
Opening stack T03,633.33 DR4.H56.43
Impact on inventory on account of sale of subsidianes - (228,262 Th
! eeR.ch2 T
Closing strick (618,612.9K; DU5,633.08)

87,022.35 50,988.31
111,327.01 184,793.14

#ehi includes inpaumment of mventones amouning o ¥ 20500 lakbs (31 Murcl 2020 243,569.67 lakhs)

Note - 32
Empiloyee benefits expense
Salines and Was 3114962 L1631
Conrribution to provident fund and orher funds 66.70 124.20
StafT welfare espensus 4.8 7058
Share bused payment expense frefer nore 46) i6.11 BO.6B.
5,206.97 11,381.77
Note - 33
Finance costs
Taterest expenses 22468 1743505
Laterest on lease labnines 135.01 10
Inreeest on income faxes palell -
Other bomowing coses 54.72 17644
22,789.01 18,116.19
Noe - 34
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depeecianon on property, plant and equipment HRT95 1153
Deprecianon on invesement propert 7371 3l
Deprecianon on nght of use e 300 1 80861
Anwirtization of intangable assets 32.23 4051
1,725.01 3,076.20




[ndiabulls Real Fstate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for 1he year ended 3t March 2021

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(2 in lakhs} (¥ in fakhs)

Note - 35
A. Impairment losses on financial assers
Loy wotten oft - B 30548

- §,395.48
B. Qnher expenses
Rent expenses 36l (4600
Rates andd raxes 1380586 9RZHR
|l and professional expenses 233784 172224
Aty watten oft HLLH 33340
Ydvertisement expenses ey 2326
Plecrnary and warer charges 3735 10293
Communicanon expenses 2.8 125,50
Dheechor sithng tees 1731 tUEY}
linsurance expenses G249
Prntng and skinenery MR
I'aveling and converance expenses 13240

Rl‘i‘.lll’! A rounfeniance CXPEASEes
Veheles 194
Buildings WA
Others 221.59
BeCUNTY EXpenses Hhs
Membership and subscrpnion fecs L0.32
Lavss an sale/write off of property, phnt and equipment (ner RN
Comonue socil responsibiliny expenses {Refer Nore {i) below) Bt 8E 103300
Brokerage and markeong expenses 335770 L6 24
Clums and compensations 677518 TRU208
Software expenses 15.16 15,13
Danatons . 7.500.31
Nl current mvestments wotten off 1.520.28 -
Horcign exchange loss (et} 344 117.32
Tmpaioment in other currenr assers# - 113237
Indermmiry churges™ 321001 163412
Mhiseallaneous expenses 107.36 A44R2
17,638.62 42,444.23
(i} Cotporate social responsibility expenses
Grass amount required to be spent by the group dunng rhe vear s 3 806.86 lukhs {31 March 2020  1,833.00 lukhs). This amount s pad o must. (2 in lakhs)
Pacticulars Period In cash Vet 1o be paid in Total
cash
. - 31 March 2021 - -
(1) Comsreucnon/acquisinon of any asset
21 March 20020 - -
(1) On purposes other than (i} above 31 March 2021 86 85 : 506,86
31 Mavch 2020 1.033.50 £,837.60

# fu prereans ear ncicdes amount £ 87500 Lakhi ahich pertis fo proiision 1ecogntsed for o seoreradlel adpstable goods and seneces g inpas redie.

* I the catlier yeary. the Halding Company had sold ooe of the subiidiary and the undelyony apreement prewbed tn indemnaly the biyer for aiy babibsy aiseng mel of all the Gitgation ol fanding 4f the feme of the wile. Wath thes
askgronad. during the prevésus year, the Holiding Company hav made cetarn outflow v which were dyvclpved as sndemnity chomges.

31 March 2021 3 March 2020
@ in lakhs) @ in lakhs)
Note - 36
Tax expenses
Current rax fincluding sarier years; 34641 303252
Lxeforred tax chagge 6,301.07 2062398
Income wx expense reported in the statement of profic and loss 7,047.48 25,656.70

The Holding Company and certun subsidiaries of the Group have cleered ro exercise the opnoen permitted ander seenon LI3BAS of the Tngome tax Acn 1961w mnsduced by the 'L
{Amendment) Credinance. 2019, Accordingly, the Holding Company and cortun subsidianes have re measured ats deferred rax assers/liabilines as ar 31 March 2020 Dasis the rare prese

aforesand seeton.

atien Linws

nbed in the

The myor components of expecred tax expense based an the domestic ebeenve b mare of the Group at 23.168% (most of the subsidiaries in the Group has dus ey eate] and the reported rix

expense in stitement of profitand loss are as foll

(H

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muliiplied by India's tax rate

Accounting profit before tax from cononuing sperations (inclusree of loss /probic from omt ventures) T.31033 43,8353
Accounting profit before income 1ax 7,519.33 45,856.55
T shuturory meome fax cate oF 23 168" o (3 Aarch H020: 23,168, ) 18246 TEHLIR

Tax effect of amoums which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Tas impact of exempted mcome

T impact of indexanon benehy under Income Tax Ay, 1961

6,399,023

Deterred mix nRICT on "Reversal of revenue and related costs as per Ind AS 115 SRR

Lax inpact of expenses which will never be allowed 2507 201023
L nngract of unrecogmised deferred rax on unabsocbed business and capatal losses 11,3223 994706
T impact of earlier vear items 1.363.01
Irhers G164 2757.22
Income tax expense T47.48 25,656.70




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Macch 2021
Note « 3%

Fair value measurement

(i

=

Fair value hierarchy

Jmancial 1ssets and Ginancial habibines measured at fur value e the sratement of financal posmon are grouped 1ot three Levels ot a tar value hierarchy. The three Loy vls are defined bzsed on the obsenataliny of
symuficant inpuis 1o the measurement, as follows

Level L quuted prices wmadjusted) i acove aiarkers for inancral instruments
Level 2 mputs other than quoted prces included witlun Level 1thar ate ohzervable tor the asseor iabiliee, aather digecely nrindirect
Level 3: unobservable wapues for the asset or liabdicy.

(ii} Financial asseis measured at fair value — recurring fair value measurements

(¥ in lakhs)
31 March 2021 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial instraments at FYTPL
Unquoted cquity mstramengs 1967 36 L6756
Mutual funds 15 18 HK I8
Finanecial instruments at FVOC]
Quated equity insruments 0,134.46 - G134 40
Total financial assets 6,259.64 - 1,967.56 822720
31 March 2020 Level L Level 2 Level 3 Total

Finaocial asscts
Financial instruments at FVTPL

Unquoted equty instruments - 37124

Cprionally convernbk: preference shaces 3770

Mutual funds 157.23

Financial instruments at FVOC]

Quoted cquity msteunents 3,258.24 - 3.258.34
Total financial assets 341549 - 348894 6,904.43

(iti) Valuation process and technique used ta determine fair value
Financial assets
2) Traded (marker) price bass recogmised stock exchange tor quoted cquity matrurments,
b} Use of net asset value for mutual funds on the basis of the statement recaved feom mvestee parry.
¢ Far unquoted equiry instruments and optionally convenible preference shares, the (roup has used adjusted aet asset value method which Bactors far value of assets and labibses of wve
adyustment of factors such as lack of liquidiy, time elapsed from date of investment ete.

e entity wath an

The following 1able summarises the guantitaive mfomuation about the sgnificant unobservable mputs used in level 3 faur value masuzenenes,

Fair value (R in lakhs} Significant bservabl Data inputs
Parnticulars 31 March 31 March . b M Masch 31 March Sensitivity analysis
2021 2020 fpues 2021 2020
Unquoted equity insmument  adqusted net assct vahse 1,967.56 117124 |Laguidity factor P- 'y Change of +/ 1" m hquidiry factor bas tollowing
method impacts
31 March 2021
4195 loss of T (19.68} lakhs
-1 gain of T 14.68 lakhs
38 Macch 20X)
+ 1% doss of TLTN lakhs
14 gain of T 3171 lakhs
Opuonally convernible preference shares 317,70 | Liquidaey factor - Hir Change of +/-120 in hquidity factor has fllowing,
mpacts
31 March 2021
N
31 Maech 2020
+ 1% foss of T{A18) bkhs
1"a gam of T318 lakhs
(iv) The Eollowing table presenrs the chansges m level 3 items for the vear ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 (¥ in lakhs)
Faniculars Unquoted Oprionally
equity convertible
instrument | prefetence shares
As ac | Apal 2019 3,182.27 345.96
1 s recogmised on account of fair valuaton of mvestments i statement ol prefir and doss 1103 128.26;
Peofit on mle of mvestments 3,000.00 -
Amauat cecesved on drposal of mvestments 3,000 00
As at 31 March 2620 3,171.24 31N
Loss recogmised on account of mpgicment of myestments n siatement of peofit and losx {1,203.68) 3700
As at 31 March 2021 1,967.56 -




[ndiabulls Real Estaic Limited
Sunumary of sigmificant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3 March 2021

31 March 2021 3 March 2020
(2 in lakhs) (T in lakhs)

Note - 37
Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group's Fanungs per Share JEPSS s deermined based on e ner proticamburble s the sharehoddens” or e Tlolding Company Basie carmmigs pee share s compated asing e wee

Averige tumber ob shares outseanding danog the vear Diluted caomogs per share s compured vang e wegghred average number of common and dilunae comimon equavatent sharccaunending:

g the veac nchrdng share opnens, exceptwhere the cesult would heann dilurn e, Wenghted aseege nunber of equity shares meludes the mpace of Buy Back of equies shaees donng the sear

The tolbweing retheers the income and share dare used s the basic and dilated PR3 compatanons:

Pt antnbutabike fo equery sharehslders s the Holding Companytd g bikbsi 15025 12000 23

N

Vesral numbier of equity shares <

al value A ety share (2) 2 2Nt

tanchng s the hegunig of the vear 134,003 K76 HI.080, 28
andhing at the end of the yew 1315338712 134 06603870

Tesral number of cquiry shares ours

Wewhited aserge numbier of equiny shaces tar s cammg per share 432024373 ERATANRY)
Add: Share based opnons® .
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted foe diluted carning per share 452,024,175 453,834,397
Earnings per equity share:
Basiw L1 247
Uhluted IRl 267

“Porentul equity sures are ant-dilunve m namre, hence they have not been considered for caloulanng weaphted average nunber of equiny shares wsed v compure dilured cartungs per share

Thes ypuce bt been ententeamally left bianie)
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Numman of significant accnuting pulicics and other explnatony mfaemagon for the scar cnded 3t March 2121

Note - W
Financial rikk managemen
i) Financial instruments by catcgory
(€ in lukhs)

M Masch 2021 A March 2020
FYEDL VL Amarized cost EVTPL TVICE Amartized cimt
Finuncidl axeets
livestiments
Liguity msaruments# 14907 560 EREERTY ENE] 3058.24
Cptemally vonscamibbe prelerence shaec” 3770 -
Mutwal funds® (RSN - 13725
(LRI 628258
Foadde mceivables WY
Lo 23812
Cavh and cash equir dlenrs 211601 SAITAS
COther Dk lalanes TR 20 21
Secunty degaoats 102332 2O
Cither finark al aveets ¥5,18212 163021 5
Vatal finawcial a5t 1,672.74 A, 154 46 175,233.35 3.546.19 1.258.24 M7 67093
(i lakhe)
31 March 2021 31 March 202
Ve, 1V OCE Anoroed cost IVTFRL FV{X Aumortized cosy
Hinancial hubilivies
Borrowtug (ine luding iverest acgeued) 12410698 27T
Lease liabiliti < 64956 3 THLR
“rade pagables 06319 WKL
Secunty deposies R T Bi
it financial babilities 432934 - THEIY
'Total finuncial hab - 19751158 - ¥99,623.44
= Fhew inamaol ussels v eedamly menared if far nae
B Thoe Frawand srcels rpresentc iRtmcn? 0 cquir) ot mmesl deupm el sk upos iactiol reogniien
i value of i dat iced cust (Tin bikhs)
. 3t March 2021 31 March 2020
Pariculars Level -
Carnying vakic | Fuir valie | Garping vabee | #air vatuc
inmacial dsectx
v strrent in bomeds Level 3 6,282 38 0,282 66 628266
Sexunly depasits Lesul 3 51239 185165 183363
COrher Anan il assels level 3 1,738.57 32927 300270
T oeal finuncial asscte 8,5%3.74 13,429.18 13,429.18
anciul liabiites
DBoreowings Level 3 37,805 38 3780558 BRI Lo U891 L
Toml nancial liabi 37,805.58 37,805.54 GR, 94196 M99

The slurce disclosures is preseated far eut-cunnt Binancial aers and non cusrent Rnancial Babilitiss, Carnvag value of vurmeed fine il assets and comoir
firmnncial Iabiitics [teade receivables. cash and cash equivalents, nther Lank balinces, loms, other financial assets, horewings. trade pavables, other current
finusasinl habsilities and redeermahle o
* This urcluales nom—convertible sedesmshle deenures 1 by the Holding Company shich are listed on stack exchange and theee 13 0o comparable
fumtrament having the sinilar teems and conditiuns with selatcd seunm: ling pledged and hence the carrying value of the delentores and bonds nepresents the

shares) reprrssnta the heat estnute of Gir value.

T st extisaie uf Fair value,

) Risk Munugement
The Group's schanes expose 1t to market msk hyudts ok and et nak The boasd of duecton has overall responubiity fur the establichment and nveraght
of the nsk management framewock. This nue cxplans the siurces of nak which the entity it exposed fo and how the cutly munages the nsk and the relawed

impae 18 the financial statements

(A} Credit rek
it risk is the nsk that 3 couniepary (als 10 dis hage us obigsiun b the Lroup The Group's exposure o credit asd s willuem ed manls by cash ad
d m anwrnzed cont The Group confinuously monitors delauln of cusumme and other

canh cquivakan, trade recewables and finascral assets i

and this infe

nio s ¢ redat sk cantrols

i ¥
4} Credit riak management
i Gkt ik rsing

Ihe CGrrup wsesics and manages credit nish of fnancial assers based o lollowing eategnees arcived un the basis ol sssumpbens, apurs and e ors ypeific 1o

A Low crodw msh

£ Moderaw credu risk

: High <redit risk

Reowet group

Basis of catcgomeation

Frmiason for cxpensce credit oa]

A low credit ash

Investments, trade ceceivables, cash and cash
cqurrstenms. other hank balances, keans and other

12 month cxpected crodit bass /Life
tirne < apected cred loss

Dmuancial asscrs

B Vigh credit mek Teade recervables Tfe amw capetvd crodit ks o)

fully provided for

In reqpes t of teade rceivables, the Grop reogmses 1 provimn e bietime expecred credit ks,
Iaswd v busncess environment in which the Geoup vperates, 2 default o a linancal ass is considered when the vountes pasty Gl 1 faks payments within
the agreed fite e tiodd 25 per contrast, Loss eanes ee lec g defaolts are basecd on acmial credit bass expeniency and comsdenny duiferen ex hetween et and
histoeival cconamic conditions

Ngatte are wnticn off when there is wo reasomabile expectation uf secaters. sch as a delior declering bankeuptey or 3 lilngation de sled agamst the Group, The
Ciroup connnues 1o engage with pacaes whos balunces are wntten off and attempts o enforce repaymaent. Recoveries made are secoasd wn statement of
profinamed loss

Crodit nsh ndated 10 cash and cash equivaliats and bank deposite s managed by anly accepting highly rated hanks and s sl imsmronom sl diveesifiing
Dank deporsite and accounte in different banks, Credi ask 1= conssbered Tow hecause the Contpany deals wath hughly ruied Inunks sodt fiauncial matitation. Loans

and other Fnancial sssers measured ac amertzed cosi muludes long: teem bank depensits, sccurity deposits and ather recewables Credit ndk related o these

Gimancrs] avcts 15 mansged by aronsoring the ecoverabilit o sy smounts continooushy, while f the same time utemal amrol witen i place ensare the

amsonsnts are within defned limits. Credit sish is consdered hra o ause the Company is in possession of the widedving et Further. the Conpany <reates
premtsson Iy assessing inchsidual finan sl ssset for expec Laten o s srecht biss hasic 12 month scpecied credit loss moadel

(% in kakhc)
31 March 2028
N1 324 42

Anscts under credic ek —

3t March 2021

173.2367 95

Credit rating Particolar

A Low credit msk Irvestnents, rade froewables, cash aid <ash equivaknes, odher bank

Brabanced, boais aml other financial assets

V'racle receivaldes 302 3504

15 High « redlit sisk




1y

Al

The Ciroupr s pringspal busine s. x b ties are des ehapien w properies nd aotal akome Livans ard b fnasal st maody represants reey

aclvanced For s ss purpses, The Gty cptrsms 1o vt nek T trade cecers able s preoted bekow

(Tin lakhs)
[Parsicuban T 31 March 2021 | 30 March 2020 |
[Real estutc pryect meeivables | 3001904 | 150 |
Credit rink cxporure
P, an oy cxpected credit knugs
The Gruog provudes fir 12 owinth expested credit losses ue ot expectsd coodit hisses fon fallimang Gnanc al o -
An at 31 March 2021 {! in bakhs)
Particulars mated  |Fxpected credit] | Canrying
Frow losses anmnt netof
carnving impairment
amount a1 pravinion
defuult
tuvesiments thandsh 282 3R 028238
Trake recervaliles LIVEER XYY R %0 RO X
Cash aod cash cquivalents LA T LR o
[Cber bk balances 113180 . 1159186
Toans 2T00R2 2500812
Secunty depuat 102552
Other financial assets 9318212
As ar 3t March 2020 (T in kakhs)
Particalur Expecied credit| | Carryang
losses amuant net of
impairment
amuaar at
defuutr
Tavestents fhonds) 6B - 628266
Trade tecomables BIHB ™ 23 LUIETH]
Cash and cash cyuivalents +EI7T N 481743
Cotheer hank balances 230621 32.706.21
Loans L6330 006150
Security depusit 2.864.36 2.864.56
Orther R ial aymers 16200705 162071.56
Expected credit bos for trade receivables vnder simplified approach
Reul extate burinces reccivables
The Group connders prosision fur hictime expected <cadin ko Cimven the nuture of busisess operanons, the Group™ recervables from teal eatate basiness
does non have any expected crodit lss as transfee of legal hle of praperties wld is generally passed on to the custonies, e the Group recerves the entire
comsidetation and hence, these are been cousidered a3 low credit sk anscts. Furiber, dunng the pedods preseated, the Geovp has made no waic-off of
recervables,
Rental husiness reveivables
The Gruup considers prvism for hicunse espected credit bom Groen the namre of hunness operatons, the recen abvkes from cenral husiness has low credit
disk 13 the Limup holds secunty depoals agamit the prenuses gven an reniaks. Furthee, hastoncal tamds indicate xume shortfall becween such deprats held by
the Group and amuounts due from cusomers, Hence, with the histoncal loss espeaence and forward looking informaton, the Group has provided expected
credit lyws n relation o receivahles from rental business. Further, during the periods prescnied, the Gruup hay made o wnte-offs of wceivables
) (¥ i lukies)
[Reconcilution of tonn allomancs Teade receivables
Loas sllwance ar on 1 Apeil 2819 33.04
Allowance forcgpected coedil lou -
Loss allbowance on 3L March 2020 1304
Allowaiwe for ctpecied credit losy 158
Tosu alkiwance on 31 March 203 M52
Viquidiey rink

Liguidity nak ix the sk thar the Croup wall encountee difficolry i mweeting the obligations sssociated with 1ts fasncul lablities thue are senked by delivering
cask or snather Financual asset The Cirgs approach 10 siansging bquicdkts 15 o ensure a3 fa ax passible, that 1t will have sufficicnt hauidin 1o meet i
lisbilive s when the v are dov

Managroment mentors raling lor s of the Grow's liquudsts posmion and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of cxpecied cash Bows e G takies
s sccount the huicits of the market in which the entity operates

Marurivics of financial habiktes
The 1ahkes beluw analyse the Geoup's faancial Ti

iriea i rebevant maturine groupings bustd oo sic contractual satrtics

(2 in lakhs}
51 March 2021 Lees than | 1-2 yemrs 2 Yvcam Motc than 3 Towal
year years
Borrowings (inchuding ke e st sccroed) 86201 40 37.805.58 - 124,006.98
Lease babilites 69,36 - 69.54
Teade payable 3006314 B - - 30,063.19
Sccuty deposits 75 5 . - 7837
e furmrcl batnlioes FERCER - 43,293.40
Lol 15%,705.92 12,805.58 B - 197 51151
(T in bukha)
31 March 2020 Lews than | 1-2 years 23 veans Mare than & Toal
year yeam
Rormwing {inchuding ite rest accrved) 173,569 34 WLE.00 68,791 94 - 27248130
Lease bahilines 191862 pAL X 440,91 4,458.93
lrace papalilc 1373821 - - 4472
Secunty depumts .39 - - - #4.39
Other finaat Nabilines R334 , - TRSH 44
Toual 29%,540.02 3L,09.40 69,232.87 - 300,419
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Summun, of significant secounting policies and other cxplanan informariun fur the year ended 3 March 2021

(C) Marke rick
0]

Intcrest rate risk

Phe Gronp fived rate Termminy sre ot suluedt e merese saae nak s detmed nInd A5 1947 snce seriber the cacr oy ammotnt aor the tutus +ash flows 1l

fluctuate because of 2 change 10 nicket intcnos rates

§he:

Sovaups varishlc fale botiosig 1 sube 0 gt o Belos i the osenall esposue of the boticuing

(¥ in kakhs}

| 31 March 2021 | 31 Murch 210
Variabie san bomowing EONTTED [EXYErT
Fixed st mirrowing Ru R [N
T otal borrowirgs 122,250.53 200,910.81
Nensitivin
Prsht o lsss s sensitive 10 hughes Mer mivnest sapense tran s anable tak borrosangs o sl ol hages ay isiener pates

(¥ in takhs)
Particubin 31 Masch 2021 | 31 March 2020
Taterest paies — increare by 1 (3 March 030 171 o 97941
Tterest mates = deceease by 10 (31 Muech 2000 4 2 974y

(i) Foreigm cachange rish
The Geoup hiss intemnational tesactions and 10 cxposil 16 fragy exchamgs S5k asisg from foreyon currencs o ons impurts nd exponsg Foragn
exchange sk arises fom funiee commneecal tansacions ad recogiisd st and lalbabiic: denommaked in a cueem s that 1= not the Growg's Rarctional
cutsency The Geoup dhos aot hedge its fompgn eschange ceceivabilesipavables
Lareiga curreacy risk euposurc: {Z.in Lak
{Particubam | Cumeacy [ 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
l‘rmk pavables l VRO 107s |
Seanitiviey
The sensitinity of prafit o ks i changes w the exchang: rates anscd maialy from foceign «uenency denominated financial nstruments.
(T in kaks,
rars : p Rl E y vy
Particuturs Crmener Vxchange rate itcreane by 1% | Exchange mee decrease by |
i M March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 3 March 2021 | ¥ March 2020
Trade payables LUROY 1] - My

(i) Prive rink

The Group cxpasurs prce ok armes from nvestmenn held anl clofied m ihe balance sheet ener a1 fair alse theough cther camprehensive tacome ue 3

fae valuc through profit urloss T sy the price nk snsmg from investments, the Grwg diversfies ws portfoho of assen

Senwitivicy

Erofil of oss and equity 1z senstivs to hight r/luwer pocrs of mstouments oo the Group prafis for the penods - {Tin Lkhs)
Purticulam 31 Maech 2021 | 31 March 2020

Price sensi

Munal fund

Price merease by (0} FVTPL nstnument i H

Price decrease by (2%} - FYTPL instrument [=3T0) 3y
Unquated cquity imsruments

Poce incremse by {25} FVTPL insteument ORE) 6342

VPrce decreaw: (W35) 342
Uptionally convertibke preference sharcs

Prce incrense by (244) - FUVTPL mateument L3N

Prive devmeise by (2% FVTIL mstourment (633}
{noted cquity inminaments

I'nce increase by {10 - FYOCT mstrument 61545 31382

I'rice increase by (100) FVOCT mstrument 1543 (325.82)




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

Nowe - 40
Revenue related disclosures
Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's tevenue from contracts with customers:
(T in lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Revenue from operations
{a) Revenue from ceal estate properties

(b) Revenue an account of sertlement of existung project

150,683.34

7H8,623.45
13.,707.00

(<} Revenue from real estate properties advisory and mamgement services - 17083
(d} Revenue from sale of land 299.50 .
{fy Revenue from construction contracts (refer note ¥ below) 44.16 2004377
(i1} Other operating income (advisory services, [nterest income on delayed payments from customers, service 963.60) 1,238.25
receipts and forfeiture income)
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 151,990.60 114,783.30
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract dabilides from contract with customers:
(¥ in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contract liabilities
Advance trom customers 283,721.03 324,105.5%
Total contract liabilivies 283,721.63 324,105.59
Receivables
Trude receivables 30,019.64 8,015.01
Total receivables 30,019.04 8,015.01

Cunteact asset is the dght o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Coatrace habiliey is the enun's obligation o transfer goods or
services o a customer for which the endry has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract asscts (unbilled receivables) are transferced o

receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract Labilities are tecognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Significant changes in the contract liabilides balances during the year are as follows:

(T in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers

Opening balance 324,105.59 422 062.24
Addinons/ {refunds) duning the year - net 80,624.00 (7,304.44)
Adjustment on account of revenue recognised during the vear (121,007.96) (V11,652.21)
Closing balance 283,721.63 324,105.59

The aggregate amount of transaction price alkocated w the unsatisfied performance obliganons as at 31 March 2021 is T 283,721.63 lakhs (31 March 2020 was
324,105.5% kakhs). This balance represeats the advance received from customers (gross) aginst zeal estate properties under development. The management expects to
further bill and collect the remaining balanee of twal considerancm in the coming years. These balances will be recopmised as revenue in future years as per the policy

of the Company.

Reconciliaton of revenue from sale of real estate propertes and on account of sculement of existing project

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contract cevenue 153.447.20 96,170.14
Adjustment for:
- Subvenbon cost (2,763 86) (3.843.6Y)
Revenue from sale of real estate properties and on account of seulement of existing project 150,683.34 92,330.45

* Jubvention cost represent the expecred cash outflow under the acrangement determined basis ume elapsed.

One of the subsidiary company of the group camns cevenue from constructon contracts. Revenue and related expenditures in cespect of short-term works contracts

that are entered into and completed during the vear are accounted for on accrual basis as they are carned. Reveaue and related expenditures n

respect of long-term

works contracts are accounted for on the basts of ‘input method” as the performance obligatons are sansfied over time. For the purpose of cevenue recogninon, as
part of the input method, the pereentage of completion 18 arrived basis the cost incurred as compared the total budgeted cost for the contract. in case of cost plus

contracts, revenue 15 recognised as per terms of specific contract, Le. COst incurred plus an agreed profit margn.
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5.

ing pobcies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Note ~ 41
Lease related dischosures

{i} The group as lessee

I

i lease for off i

e preoiises, Wi the exception of shod-teem leases and Teases of kow vabue underlong assers, each lease s refiecred vn the

The Group has leases For oth
rand a lease Tabiline: Vactable lease pavments wihich do nor depend onan index or 2 eare are excluded trom the ol

batance sheet as a nght-ot use ass
measurement of the lease bty wnd rghe of use assers The Grroup bas presented s npght of-use assers i the balance sheet separately feom ather

PECI S

Fach lease generally impaoses 2 restocton that, unless there 1 a conrtacrual oudy B the Group to sublease the asset to another pamy, the nght-ofouse
asset can only be wed by the Group Some leases contam an oprion o extend the Jease for o furthee teem The Geoup s prolubsted 1eom selling ar
ce buildings, the Group must keep those properties w2 govad stare oF cepaie and

o ke

pledging the undedying leased assets as secuny. s oner Ol

rerurn the properties i thewr oognal condition at the end oF the lease. Fucther, the Group s required to pay mamtenance tees i aceordance with rhe

Teast conrracts.

Daring the fnancial vear 2020-21, J out of 3 leases Fur office prennses were reominared berween the Group and the lessocs

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
“The expense celating to paymernts nat ncluded in the measurement of the lease habiiy i as ollows
(¥ in lakbs}
[Particulars [ 31Marxch202t | 31March 2026 |
ISImrr—rerm leases [ 363 | 146.t0 |
Taorat cash ourflow for keases for the vear ended 31 March 2021 was € 713.13 lakhs {31 Macch 2020 T 2,072 95 Lakhs)
Toml expense recognised during the year (T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[nterest on lease liabilines 13501 484 10
Depreciation on eght G use assets 710 1,808.61
Maturity of kease liabilities
The tease liabilizies are secured by the related undedying assers Future mmimum lease payments were as fedlows
(in lakhs)
31 March 2021 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 1-2 yeary 2-3 years More than 3 years - Toul
year
l.ease payments 69.56 - 69.56
Interest expense - - -
Net present values 69.56 - - - 69.56
(T in takhs)
31 March 2020 Minimum kase payments due
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Toul
Lease payments 191562 2140 H9lL 4,468.93
[nterese expense MHL56 6224 11205 - 678.85
Net present values 1,414.06 2,047.16 328.86 - 3. 79008
Bifurcation of lease liabilities a4 the end of the year in curment and aon-cusrent (T in lakhs)
Pariculars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Cagerent Tiability (amount duc wathin one vear) 69.56 141406
1) Nom-eureene lisbiiey {amount due ovet one yeac) - 237602
Touwl lease Liabilities a1 the end of the year 69.56 3,790.08
Infq abow and ion options for year ended 31 March 2021
Right of use assers Number of Range of Average Number of leases| Number of leases | Number of leases
leases retnaining  |remaining lease| with extension with purch with inati
term icrm option option option
{in yecars) (im years)
Oftice premises 2 03638 .54 2 2
Infc about and ter ptions for year ended 31 March 2020
Right of use asscts Number of Range of Average Number of leases| Numberof keases | Number of leases
leases remaining | remaining lease| with i with purch with inati
werm werm option opton option
(im years} (in years)
Office prermises il 1324 198 1 5




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summary of significunt accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Mate - 61

Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparation of ¢

¢ financial

to Schedule [I1 w the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the en Net assens i.e. total assets minus Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in 10wl comprehensive income
total lizbilities
As % of Amount As Yo of Amount Ag %aof Amount As % of Amount
consolidated ney| {2 in lakhs} consolidared (¥ in lakhs) consolidawed figures; (T in lakhs) consolidated figures (¥ ion lzkhs)
assels figyres

Holding Company

Todialialls Real Fsrare Linured 6170 3,629 133 CHIKLAEY ) (13,2537 13 836 317 261621 SHE 51 {10061 54
Indian subsidiaries

Sylvanus Properrics Linmred 302 13,6961+ (KE3 (M%) (2.79951) K - (516, 4P ) (3, 799.51;
Lacina Land Development Linvited 270 93163 33.85% 15424 A1 76"} 3354 16.48% ER
Arhieria Infrasrnacruce Linted 1290 1150292 (350.39%0) (236804 626" 1.4 (39240 {23480
Selene Constaucnons imired 121%, 1277610 (105.8(F2) 36817 107 o) KK 0363 68.29)
Indiabulls Infewsrare Lamired 30.05" 4 12803051 Al46 11% 22015 963" 2241 3013 257, 2207050
Vacih Properties Linuted (0.36" (1.27367 2103 20957 AL ) Bty 210.57
Noble Realiors Limited A7) 350 00 (0.05°%) TED 0GP [L03%) [0.20)
Nl Intrasreuciuze Devehopment Linvred LA o) 014y 07 ) 0313 [l (004" 5 0.3
Vmdhy.chal Infeastrucrure Lionred 029" 102446 {0.07%a) o7 LG (1.01%) (.7
Cercs Consrmuctions Linted 0P 0.04%%) 019 00 T0.03%) 0.19)
Shivahk Propecies Lamed ST D07 (0.08) e, 0017 10.08)
Corus Real Fstate amated 019 (3.834%%) {16.54) (UL (2.235%) (10.34)
Airmud Properties Limited 0.19% 670 20 ({0.02%) {0.07) (L {0 ) (0.07)
Fama Infraseruceure Limted 0047 141 19 .07 4) 0.30y {HNP, .01 0100
Chlonis Real Fstate Limited 0417, 142060 (3.84%) (16,33 D) (7 23%) 116,33
Albina Real Estare Limued ) 4104) (0.18%) 076) 0.0, . [ 10P5) 10.76)
Devona Infrastucrure Linneed i) 0P W07 (0.02°0) {0.08) 1 0% 0.01%} K004}
Seridi Propertics Limited ) ©.03) 0.02%) R 0.0 0.01%) 007
Indiabulls Infrarech Limired 0.00% 1.90%% 16.92 0" 6.34% .92
Indliabulls Fstate Limired 279 973419 1279% 3305 133% 468 812% .73
Undiabullk Land |kdings Limited 0.05% 29705 0 10%) 041 0.0 (0.06%) 041
Nilgirt Land Developmenr Limited 007" 200 92 (1.91%a) (8.23) LU L - 12%) (8.2%;
Indubully Commurcia Estare 1imired (1.12% 43294 {1.87%) {8.416) (X - {1 107%) {B.00)
Indiabulls Engmeering Limited 0.11% 183,43 10 79%4)| (3.38) 0.0 (046%) (338
Endiabulls Infrastructure Progects Timited 0.03% 103 21 (0.00%) 0.4 4 00% A.06%%) 042
Nilgri Linds Limtedd 0130 HH.00 {1.531%0) (3.65) 0.00° 0 {0.77%) {2.65)
Nilgiri Jand loldings Linited 0.28% 97272 1.73%) [7.44) 0,007 (101%) [7.44)
Nilgirr Infeastructuce Lamted 0.08% 263589 (D.0H%) {017 DN - 002) 017
Indubulls Commercial Peopernies Limred 0071 230.78 {0.02%) (0.07) 0.00% - (0.01%) .07
Aireoid Devedopers Limired T8 2749825 1.29% 555 (LIPS - 075% 555
Crra Propermes Lanvted 1) (647 25) (4813675 (2,671 03) 10 K% 125 (276.96°3) (T037 81,
Juvenius Esrare Limired 1113% 38,868.06 137.78% 1410.27 (0. W) {1.20) 191.51% 14K
IB Holdinys Linwred X0 Vi) 135 {LG7%) 0.313 0.0 - {1.04%) 0.3
Platanic Tnfrastrucrure Limited (.00 ) ) [ 0.07) 0 0P, 0.01%%) 007,
Ashisr Construcnons Limired (1) O 3.41 (0.07%) 0.3 % - (0.04%73) 0.31)
Puaidia [nfeastrucrure Limired [ 378 0-07%) 031 0.0 . 10.017%) 0 31)
Lorita evelopers Limated 001°s 3386 0.21% R 00075 - 012 .89
Senda Infrastrucruee Limired {0.00%0) {0LA13) 0.04%) {0).16) .00 (0.02%%) {016}
Vonnic Real Fatare Limired 100 0.20 10.0%%) 007) 0.00% (4101%) 07
16 Assers Lamited 0.0, 036 008 (633 [T ) [EE)
Fama Buldecs and Developers Limited 019% 30437 037%) (158 VNP, 0.21%) {1.38)
FPami Construction Lamired 024 §16.5¢ 0.04%) 0.16) o 0-02%) )
Fama Fstate Limired 0.39% 1360 21 (0.02°%; .08 0.0 . (:01%5) 0.08)
Farta Land Development Limited 016% 33507 0.02%) 0.57) [T B WOL%s) woT
Lavone Builders and Developers Eamited 0.2)% 713,55 {1.80°%) {775 [HX1 Y {1 05%0) {7.7%)
| Juvenrus Infrastructure Lienited U Py 363 (0. 15%%; {0.64) 100 {0.09%) (0.64)
uventus Dropertics Limited 0.09% 322,32 (154%) (6.63) 0.00% (0.90%) 16.64)
Kailash Buildwell Limired 0.08% 20071 (0.02%) [ 00007, (0.01°%) 007
Fardkorim Baldwdl Lanreed 7% 59800 003 014 A . 0.07%) 0 14)
Kaltha Levelopers Limired D.00% L1435 (0.03%} 0.14) DK% - (13.02%) (014
Amadis Land Development imied 0.11% 16019 0.02%) 007 000, . 1% o7
Karakorim Propecties Limred 0.0 1673 0.02°) [ T WO1*y) 0.u7)
Aedas Real Estate Company Limired O 23501 002 007 000 0.00%) 007
lucina Builders and Developers Limured L, 32342 (1.29%a). (354 00K - .75%) (3.54)
Lucina Buildwell Limrted 0.49% 170276 (0.99%%) TEL .07 - (0.58%) 427
Lucina Listate Limited 017 58913 0.07%) (5 UM - W0-01%) 007y
|.ucina Peopernes |amted 08 Bk [39%) 160 G, 0:23%) R
Niknor Bulkdwell Limared 001%, 3781 003%) .19 0.00P 0074} ©id
Selene Buddwell Limired 007" 243 85 {0.07%) 007 (L {01%) i)
Selene Propemes Lanted D.03% {2033 (0.03*4) 0014 LI 0.02%) 014
Cralewn Bunlders and Developers Limited 007 B3 W.62%) 0.07) 0.0 1301%) {0.07)
“Triton Buddwell Limired 0.23% 788 4 {0.045%) 0 16) [ B 0.02%) [0.16)
Triton Infrastruczue Limired 0167 33615 (0.03%) L1y NP D025y {.14;
Teha and Developmenr Linuted VA1 368 (G.02%a) {0.07; Lo - (B.017) [(LXLE)]
Narali ])r\'el(vj,vers Limitexd 0.34% L1B8 49 (0. 14} {0 59, QP - (D8 (0.3
Vindlyachal Devek wrees Lamired 017 394.89 {1.987 ) B3 Doy 1.16° ) {8,530
Vindhyachal Buldwell Linured 125" 138355 007 R (T [ [CEIN
Zeus Builders and Developers Limited 0.02 8686 0.03% 013 (R4 0.02% oLy
Zeus Propertics Lanted 0.7, 03214 {0.03°0) [ [ 007 014
Albusta Consteuceons Limired [ B {0157 10.63) 00 {09%0) (0-63)
Angles Construenons Linvted [ 07 007 10.07) 000" (0.01%) .07
Albasts Developees Limired 110K 203 00H%) 016 0Nr, - 00Xy 016)
Abasts Infeasteucruce Limited 0P ) o 73700 375068 [ g (H.26%) (375.68)
Albasta Real Estare Limited 0.06% 19632 (604" ) {016} 0N - [.02°%) {016




[ndiabulls Real Ustate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informartian for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Note - 61 {Cont'd)

Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the generalinstructions for preparation of ¢

Lidated 6

ial s o Schedule [ w the Companies Acr, 2013

Name of the entity Net assets ie. 104al assets minus Share in profit or loss Share in other comprebensive income Shar in otal comprehensive income
As " of Amount Asthof Amount As % of Amount As Lol Amount
consolidated ned! {T in lakhs) consolidaed {2 in lakhs) consolidated ligures (T in lakhs) cangolidared figures (¥ in lakhs}
assets figares

Albusta Meepentwes |amated 030" 207465 UL 0.1 D 020 miy
Alhina Propertis Limited BT e oo 018 N WY RIS
Angina Propeeties Famited 00 QR 4220 [ LS 574 412
Apesh Peopertus Lamited [ 22387 a7 0.30) [ e wn
Apesh Real Vstare Linired [ [ 0, 0.10) VAP 0T 0 16}
Athena Land Development Lamated .20 6092 12 A2 0.07) TGS 001"} Ty
Athena Builder: and Developers Lunwed 0H3%a 115 7% 673 7405 [LRC LY 393" 20105
Athena Buldwell [amited 100 3 60 AR ¢33 000 LHP AEE]
Aurars Builders and Developers Linuted [0 ) [3) 101%) (0.06) [ (0.01%0) [
Carea Developers Limited 0000y m (D) (. 40) 0.00% (1.06") [R5
Ceres Estate Limired 641%s 2338281 (37 29°0) 116046} [T 2181 (16035
Ceres Infrastmucture Lumared QU 3353 88 UL (018} VNP 1) 03 o W 1K)
Ceres Land Developmenr Linuted D147 486 13 002wy {0.07) [IELLY 001%0) 0.07)
Ceres Propernies Limited 0.12% 13557 10 77%%) 097 .00 R 047
L3evona Developers Lirited 0.32%% L1259 (0. 24" {1.03) DN 0 14%} L1y
Diiena [nfrast ncture Limared 343" 131348 11 12%%; {4.8% 000 1 66} {4 BY;
Diana Land Development Linmred 06, 6203 [ w.17) [ A0 iy
1J3ena Comstrucnions Limired 0.0F 11.52 B0 001 0.KFs - OO0 (sl
Tlena Propeerics Limited 0.0F 123 0.02%) 0.07) 006 B 0017 o7
FFornae Constructuons Limited 0.20%% T4 (L03"%s) 0.1 R i) - {002 ) 14
Farma Propernies Limited [ 20911 e 1133) TNF e B W1 R
Flora Land Devekipment Linuted 0.31% | 174.37 002 007 [ 0017 ) a7y
Tamas Real listate Limited 0.0 (L165) (5.17%) (72.26) DN (3030 (22.26)
THermes Rulders and Developers Linvieed .00 001 {002°%) (0.08) .00 0L (08
Hermes Meopernes Limced 1.03% 1.7 JEE e {0.16) 0.0 3.02%) {tr.16)
Indiabulls Buldvon Limured 00 (0.26) W 01°%) (0.06) 0.00F o 0.01%0) 10 106)
Makala [nfraseraceuce Limited 207 723759 {198 (17.13%) (1R {233 A7 1%
Indrabulls Communication Infrasteuctuce Limiced 0o - 0.00% - 440 % - 0o -
Tadiabulls lndustrial Infrasreucture Limited 1% (3.547 3H) (RLTT%) 782.03) D 103325 60.19)
Inciabulls Comsrauctions Limuted 24 470) (83 W3.97) (181.21%) ([788.27) 1A 0109 ) G143 82)
Mabon Consteuctions Limared 0.0 126 HURL O] {0.26) - {0AH° o) {00.26)
Mabon Propernes Limited 0.4 133 06 1.02") 0.67) - %) (0.0
Mabon Tnirastrucure Limited 000 0.03 (30, 59%%) 21768 B 29.50°%) 21768
Manjola Infrastructure Limired 000 042 (00270} (0.0 {0.01°%) 0.07)
Indrabulls Flousng Developers Limited 0.00) (0 06) 002%) 0.08) D) 0,08
Tndiabulls 1 ks and Land Development fanuted 000 106 Wers) (0-00) wary (036)
[ndiabulls Hotel Peoperties Limured 0.00° [EXL, LY - G00P0

Lakisha [nfrastrocrure Limited (LKFo 0.00% - .00 -
lndiabulls Sofrwate Parks Lunired 000 0.00% . [ 0.0 -
lvonne Infrastructure Limited 00 069 0 78%) (1.38) [ (04674 (138)
Iadiabulis 1and Limited 0.00° o) ) 0 06%0) 10.26) 13 0P 04 0.26)
Indiabulls Multiplex Secvices Limited 0.0075) 0.06) 07" 037 G0 (0H7s) EE
Indiabulls Natural Resources Lamued 0.06%% - .00 - LKFS 0.0 -
Indiabulls Proje.ts Limired 10.0Fs) (11 45) 3.15%,) (17.8%) 0.0F% (2420 (07.84)
[ndiabulls Realty Company Linnred 0.0070) (L0 83) 7 6b%0) (32.94) [ 348 (32,94
Manjola Real Fsrate Limired 0O.0Me - HEE ) - 000" 04X o

Juventus Constructions Limited 008 279.53 0.03%) (0-20) 000 0.03%) (020
[uventus Land Development Limiced 0.09% 329 11 10.02%) (0.40) 000 (0.01%) (0.10)
Lenus Constaxhons Lunited 0.00°%) ) W07 (0.30) P (0145 (0.30)
Lucina Constrsctions Limited 000 - 664 28.59 (00 389 2854
1enus Infrastructure Lioured {0.00° %) 0.04) (2 0.07) 0 (s - {0017 LT
Lenus Peopertics famied {0.007 0} {00l (0.03"%) (0.14) QKPR - (B.02%0) 19
Muarana Construenons Limired {00000} 003 0.02%) 0.07) Q0" 0.01%) AL
Macunz Developers Lonited 145% 3053 2% ES 0.08) 0P - 00l o
Mhilkrway Buildeon Linuted 000 15 % W03°s) ©.15) 0007 ] w15
Man‘;ma’l‘mpcmcs Limited {0067 5} {3.00) (1.23%) (5.31y 000 {0, 73"-'?) (3.31)
Mariana Real bisrare Lumited ) 0.3 10,07%) (0.08) 0O (0.01%) (0.08)
Nilgici [nfracsrare Limited 0.0 3.49 {0040} 0 16) 0" .02%%) rs(l.'lt’n)
Nilger fnfrastruture Peojegts Lanvited 0.88% 3004% (0. 13%0) 0534} 0.0 -E(].(JT" @) -:(l 14)
Nileari Resewrees Limited 040F - 0120) 10.50) 0.06F o — DTG EED
Selene Buillders and Developers Limired 0.00°% - 0P - 0. 0.0 o

Sentia Constnuchions Limired 0.14% 477.28 (i1.04%5) {0.18) .00 - .07y HURE!
Sentia Developers Linited ©.00°%) 0.07) 227.46%) 197737 [ (l{z.m: ) KT
Sepset Developers Limited (0.6 o) ) 0%y 10.:08) W NFa - QUi [ l:k)
Sentia Inlcastructure Lanneed 0.44% 179.12 (42 82} (18427 (R L) (u.00) 25.04%) (R4 27
Selene Infrasrructure Limited 0.03") {18447 .71 (3.07) L - 0420 (34T
Selene Land Doselopment Linured 017" 06 49 (1.42%) 16.13) [ . (8% 16.13)
Sentia Real Esvare Limited 000 697 6.23% 26.59 OIH" e 363" 26.49
Sophia Consrructens Linted 00 Y70 g6 434 7068 boir, ‘1"‘1 2 \F]’: ‘;’:’7
Sophia Real Lstare Tamited 346 12,1000 RV 189 Q0P 2.7 - n

Triron Fstate Limited 0.00% - [ - [ l‘-wq," 734
Uriton Peoperties Lamited 010 376.65 (0.20%0) (.34 0.0 oL lofz « )
Varl Constructons Limited 0.00%w 005 0107 o) JUER) 04K 06} w4




Todiabulls Real Estate Limited

Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2021

Note - 61 (Cont'd)
Additional inf ion as

quired by parageiph 2 of the genenal instuctions for preparation of ¢

d financial s

to Schedule 11 10 the Companics Act, 2013

Name of the entity Netassets ie. total assews minvs Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in towal comprehensive income
As % of Amount As %o of Amount As "ol Amount As % of Amount
consohdated net (¥ in lakhs}) consolidated {Tin lakhs) consolidated figures| (¥ in lakhs) consolidated figures| (¥ in lakhs)
assels figures
Varali Infrastructuze Limted 156" o 1067 55 33 T [OCE (195 o) 13 3
Vacah Real Esrare Limuted [HAN" o) AY03) {002 o) (L 08) aonm., FOUX U Dos
Vindhyaehal Land Development Limuted 072, 2AH67 D077 WA [T D040 WAL
Fens Toxtate Lamaed (110° ) 103 002%) [ 0.0 o 0017 g 007
tHecare Power and Land Development Limited QAN 0 19 43" £3.39 050 11.36"0 H3.54
Apesh Constructons Lamited 0P ) 7 35 53 697a) 239.60) L Brary TG0
Tannet Infrastmucrare Limated [l I [02%) 0.08) [T ) 0.08)
Lannet Constriections Lamited L 347 BHTS) 031 (5.0 {0 0) 6
Lumet Develapess Lamared D00 335 0 09°0) 01 5K) BN, 5 {005%0) D)
| annet Real Eseate Linired (16%0 HT 0 B3 66"} 359.9%) 0.00% - (48 92%0) £35995)
Lannex Peoperties Linuted 13U 137643 {0 02%4) 007 LX0 ) - QO (U7Y
Fdesa Conataucnens Limiged (LiNP: 4% 002°4) {0.07) 0.0 - .01%%) W07
Fidessa Developers Limited [T e 0.04°5) .16 [ - [0 10275) (0.16)
Fudesta Infrastructure Limited 0.0 115 0067 o) ED U, 00375 0.24)
Tudiabulls Commiereal Assets §amured (LR 0.33% 130 [ 1. 2070 1.5
Indiabulls Housing, and Constructions Limired 100 0.0 - {00 000"
Trchabulls Real state Developers Limited 10 - .10 - WA [
[ndiabulls Real e Buikiers Limited D40 - 1. 10% - 11007 0.00%%
Puconda Constructions Liemired BNy - (1.18%) {0.79) 0.00% 011%) .79)
1'arnuida Developers Linuted (S 00ty 1.55% 6 66 0.00% 090" 666
Larena Buikders Lunited 00 005 (0.02%) 10.67) 000 0.01%%) Bn)
TFamla Peoperties Limied 045 TA7429 004 1 16) [ 0 027%) W16
Newmssa Infrastrucrure Limuted 0.24% RA751 {3.84%} {16.54) 000% (225%) {16.34)
Devana Properties Limited 013 15736 (0.04%%) 0.16) 000 - E 0.16)
Laeena Constructons Limited 0.23% 8IM.56 (166} (0.26) 10 0% - [T 0.26)
Loeena Developers Liomted (119 (0.04%) .17 U - H0.025) 10.17)
Lorena Infrastrucnuce Limited 0.18% G306 10.06%) 0.24) 0P {03s) 0.29)
Luorena Real Esraee Limuted 0.25% 85,72 (0.06%) (#1.26) 0 (KP o (1) 64°) 0-26)
Maesta Buldees Lated 0.25% 819,71 10.04%%) 10.16) [T ) )
Maeatz Constarctions Limited [ 87769 10 02%) 0,67 00 B 0,017 007
Mayesea Developers Limited 0.08% 26225 [0.12%) ED DM , 0,077 [ED]
Majesta Infeastructure Limuted 0.24% §22.21 1006%%) (0.26) 100° o 0.4 0.26)
Muyesta Properties Limited 0.19% 66377 10.0%%) {014} 0.00°% [0.070) 1014
Nerissz Constructions |nsited 0.02% B ©.02") 007 0 0F-s 16.01%) 00T
Developers Limited 003% 18762 10.18%)] 077 0007 1310%) SR
Newssa Properties Limited 003 %11 K025 0.07) [ g (0.01°%) 0.07)
Nerissa Real Estare Limited 1% e W05} 034 AN (0.05%) 0 34
‘Fapic Land Development Limited 000 18.21% 78.57 0.00° 0 10.65% 78.37
Indiabulls Commercral Properties Managmment Limited 0.00% - 0.0 - 0.00% . -
Cobins Real Estate Limited 000 4.14 1).03%) 012 LK™ - WE2) 1012
Loon Infrasteucture Linured [ - WP - 1 (N DL -
Serpentes Construcnions Limired 300" 63 4%} 017 0.00% - (0.02%) 017y
Tapir Consteuctions Limired (1.2} {4,274 537) {32831 {2.274.00 012%% 035 (309.02%%) (2,273.65)
Colnris Buildwell Limired Q.00 - {L4°%) {140} 0.00% 0.61%) (1.46)
Catherne Builders & Developers Linuted {0.00° o} 316) (0.02%%) 0.07) 0.00% {0.04"%) 0T
Kenneth Hwlders & Developers Linuted D87 314670 0.3¥% .29 (.00 017% 129
Bridger Badders and Developers Limited 0.00% w 0.03%%) (013 000" 0.02°5) 013)
Zeus Butldhwell Limired 0.00°s 0.04 011%) {0.48) 0.0 00673} 048
v Kol Fstare Vimited 0.54%) (1,854 06) 075%) (7333 1947 HE 2102 716941}
Sepset Real state Tamied 4 4% 14,1480 7.38% 3175 0.05% 13 434" AL90
Foreign subsidiarics -
Foundvest Limired 0.00% 087 (5.23%%) (2257 146.25%% H6.82 ITET 424 %)
Acanca Limired 000 0.86 {0.67%) {2.88) 3 H 1151 1.04% 763
Indrabulls Properry Managemunt Teustec Pee Ird 0.08% 275 16 (477 44%) (76342 {125 B4°%) (384 47} (156.01%0) {1,L57.8%)
Shosell Holdings Limired D00 13t T 66%) 715 595 (1F.18) B4y 534
Grapene Limited 0.00%% 1.19 {0.35%%) (1.50) 01X 038 .15} {117
Dev Propeny Development Bimited 0.06% 389 £349%) {1507 O o .13 {202°%) (14.89;
Anston lavestment Limited 0 00% £ 2 06%s) (8.85) (K1) B40) 237 (1745)
Anston Investmenrs Subs € Linveed 016 369 4 (293" (1270 N e 2773 35.98% 264.71
Greand Linuited 0015 71 58) (039 236) 0217 10.63) WA (3.20)
M Holdeo | Tumited T8 27885 B3 {1.640° 5} {689 1377 1192 1.70% 3ol
M laldeo 1 Limied Q0P {ED) 75407 32439 X 208 =D 34505
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Note — 42
Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
s Lo ensure Group’s ability 1o connnue as a going concern, and
* To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to mamtain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustment to 1t 1 the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
charactenstics of the underlying assets. The Group manages its capital requirements by overseeing the following ratios—

Debt equity ratio (% in lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2620
Net debt* 100,845.32 226,946.14
Total equity 349,370.98 356,900.26
Net debt to equity ratio 0.29 0.64

* Net debt includes non-current borrowings + current borrowings + current maturnities of non-current borrowings - cash
and cash equivalents (including bank deposits and other iquid secunties).

Note — 43
Related party transactions

Relationship Name of the related parties

Joint ventures ¢ Indiabulls Properties Prvate Limited (from 29 March 2018
and till 25 September 2019)

¢  One Internatonal Centre Prvate Limited (Formely known as
Indiabulls Real Estate Company Private Limited) (from 29
March 2018 and till 25 September 2019)

o Opcote Services Limited (formerdy Indiabulls Realty
Developers Limited) (from 29 March 2018 and all 25
September 2019)

s One Qube Realtors Limited (formerly Ashkit Properties
Limited) {from 28 December 2018 and ull 25 September 2019)

®  Yashita Buildcon Lumited (from 28 December 2018 and till 25
September 2019)

e Concepts Internavonal India Private Limited (from 28
December 2018 and tll 25 September 2019)

Key management personnel ¢ Mt Mehul Johnson (Joint Managing Director) from 31
December 2020

o Mr. Vishal Gaurishankar Damani (Joint Managing Director)
till 31 December 2020

¢ Al Gurbans Singh (Joint Managing Director)
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a.) Transactions with key management personnel and joint ventures

(X in lakhs)
Nature of transactions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Managerial remuneration
Mr. Vishal Gaunshankar Damani 114.87 285.68
Mr. Gurbans Singh 357.98 624.32
Mr. Mchul Johnson 72.37 -
Share based payment
Mr. Vishal Gaurishankar [Damani - 17.78
M. Gurbans Singh - 10.66
Other long-term employment benefits - leave encashment
Mz. Vishal Gaurshankar Damamn - 6.14
Mr. Gurbans Singh (23.44) 1.59
Mr. Mehul Johnson {7.40) -
Post-employment benefits - gratuity
Mr. Vishal Gaurishankar Damani - 1.65
Mr. Gurbans Singh 0.28 0.57
Mr. Mehul Johnson 0.47 -
Post-employment benefits — gratuity (Paid)
Mzr. Vishal Gaurishankar Damani 20.00 -
Salary advance received back (net)
Mr. Mehul Johnson 22.61 -
Loans given/(received back) (net)
One Qube Realtors Limited (formerly Ashkit Properties Limited) - {3,304.20)
Indiabulls Properties Private Limited - {3,369.51)
One International Centre Private Limited (formerky - 136.00
Indiabulls Real Lstate Company Private Linited)
Interest income
One Qube Realtors Limited (formerky Ashkit Properties Limited) - 246.29
Indiabulls Properties Private [imited - 41.26
Income from administration, legal and management fee and
marketing commission
Opcore Services Limited (formerk Indiabulls Realty Developers Limited) - 1,144.32
Yashita Buildcon Limired - 26.52
Depreciation on right of use assets
One International Centre Private Litnited (formersy - 730.86
Indiabulls Real Estate Company Private 1 imited)
Interest on lease liabilities
One International Centre Private Limited (farmerdy - 229.60
Indiabulls Real Lstate Company Private I imited)
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{% in lakhs)
Nature of transactions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Maintenance expenses
One International Centre Private Limited (formerdy Indiabuils Real Fxstate G4.55
Company Private 1 imited)
Electricity expenses
One International Centre Private Limited (formerly Indiabulls Real Estate - 43.98
Company Private 1imited)
Revenue from construction contracts (excluding taxes)
Indiabulls Properties Private Limited 7,318.26
One International Centre Private Limited (formerty Indiabully Real Estate - 6,802.86
Company Private Limited)
Corporate guarantees (settled)/given
[ndiabulls Properties Private Limited - (256,452.78)
One International Centre Prvate Limited (formerdy Indiabutls Real Estate (2406,909.35)
Company Private Limited)
b.) Statement of balances outstanding of key management personnel (¥ in lakhs)

Patticulars of balances in respect of related party transactions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Post-employment benefits ~ gratuity
Mr. Vishal Gaurishankar Damani - 16.49
Mr. Gurbans Singh 19.88 19.60
M. Mehul Johnson 17.65 -
Post-employment benefits — leave encashment
Mr. Vishal Gaurishankar Damani - 23.55
Mtr. Gurbans Singh 30.07 53.51
Mr. Mehul Johnson 17.18 -
Salary Advance Given
Mr. Mehul Johnson 112.90 -

Note — 44
Contingent liabilities and commitments

As per the policy of the Group, at each year end, the Group assesses the possible future outcome of the matters
disputed with Direct tax, Indirect Tax and other Regulatory authorities. T'he assessment is made after considering
the facts of the case and applicable statutory provisions. Apart from the cases where possibility of a negative
outcome is remote aze either provided for or disclosed as contingent liability as per management's assessment.

Summary of contingent liabilities

i. Corporate guarantee issued by Holding Company on behalf of other entitics amounting to ¥ 26.48 lakhs {31 March
2020k T 5,084.06 lakhs).




Indiabulls Real Estate Limited .
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31

March 2021

ii. Contingent liabilicies in respect of income-tax demands for which appeals have been filed T [2,719.04 lakhs (31
March 2020: ¥ 12,617.09 lakhs)

iti.  Contingent liabiliies in respect of income-tax demands for others T 558.63 lakhs (31 March 2020: T 698.28 lakhs)

iv.  Contingent liabilitics in respect of indirect tax cases demand for which appeals have been filed T 4,377.22 lakhs (31
March 2020: T 4,289.09 lakhs)

v.  The Group has certain litigations involving customers. Management believes that these claims may be payable as and
when the outcome of matters are finally determined. Based on past trends and mnternal legal analysts, the management
believes that no material liabdity will devolve on the Group in respect of these litigations.

Note — 45
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Group has made T 66.76 lakhs (31 March 2020 - % 124.20 lakhs) contribution in respect of provident fund and other
funds.

Defingd Benefit Plan

The Group has the following Defined Benefit Plans:
* Compensated absences (Unfunded)

*  Gratuity (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liabiliry.

Mortality nisk Actual death & liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation
can impact the liabilities.

Salary nsk Actual salary increase will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liabiliry.

Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Group's liability for permitted leaves. The amount of provision of ¥ 50.37 lakhs (31
March 2020 ¥ 20.72 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Group does not expect all emplovees to
take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on the independent
actuarial report, only a certain amount of provision has been presented as current and remzining as non-current. The

weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is in the range of 12.45 to 17.66 vears {31 March 2020 - 14.35
to 17.21 years.

Actuarial loss on obligation: (X in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Actuarial loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - 6.01
Actuarial (gain)/loss on artising from change in financial assumptions 548 (30.77)
KActuanal gain on arising from change in experience adjustment (153.34) {108.92)
Total (147.87) (133.68)
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Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (¥ in lakhs)
Particulats 3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Service cost 45.08 67.27
INet interest cost 30.06 35.71
Hctuanal gain for the year (186.57) {133.68)
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss (111.43) (30.70)

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: {T in lakhs)
[Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Ptesent value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 430.72 471.27
Adjustment on account of disposal/acquisition of entities -
Service cost 45.08 67.27
[Net interest cost 30.05 35.71
Actuarial gain for the vear (186.57) (133.68)
Benefits paid {0.65) (9.84)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 318.63 430.73

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current (% in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Current liability (amount due within one year) 5().37 20.72
b) Non - current liability {amount due over one year) 268.26 410.01
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 318.63 430.73

Fot determination of the liability of the Group, the following actuarial as

sumptions were used:

Particulars Compensated absences

31 March 2021 31 Match 2020
IDiscount rate 6.83% 6.99%
Salary escalation rate 5.50% 5.50%

Mortality table

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012 -14)

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012 -14)

As the Group does not have any plan assets for compensated absences, the movement of present value of defined benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuanal appraisers. Discount
factors ate determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markers and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligaton. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan (X in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2021 Year 31 March 2020
a) April 2021 — March 2022 50.37 April 2020 — March 2021 21.13
b) April 2022 — March 2023 6.14 April 2021 — March 2022 70.39
<) Apnl 2023 — March 2024 9.31 Apnl 2022 — March 2023 7.68
d) Apnl 2024 - March 2025 5.86 April 2023 — March 2024 21.65
o) April 2025 — March 2026 7.68 | April 2024 — March 2025 14.08
f) April 2026 — March 2027 20.76 Apl 2025 — March 2026 11.25
g) Apnl 2027 onwards 219.02 April 2026 onwards 501.42
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Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences

(3 in lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 318.63 430.73

a} Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {16.23) (23.04)

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 17.52 24.75
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 318.63 430.73

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 18.37 25.13

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {16.99) {25.84)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Grratuity

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/
termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days’ salary muluplied
for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is 2 non-funded plan. The weighted average duration of the defined
benefit obligation is in the range of 14.35 to 17.66 years (31 March 2020: 14.35 to 17.21 vears)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation recognised in other comptehensive income (X in lakhs)
Particulats 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
KActuarial gain on arising from change in demographic assumption - (0.93)
Wctuarial loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 16.15 87.53
IActuarial (gain)/loss on ansing from change in experience adjustment (108.44) (131.25)
[Total (92.28) (44.65)

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as undet: (X in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Service cost 120.16 174.23
Net interest cost 85.35 96.59
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 205.51 270.82

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as undet: {% in lakhs)
[Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Ptesent value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 1224.36 1,275.43
year
Service cost 117.40 174.23
Adjustment on account of disposal of entities -
INet interest cost 88.11 96.59
lActuanal loss for the year (141.05) (44.65)
[Benefits paid {31091} {(277.23)

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 977.91 1,224.37

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current (X in lakhs

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Current liability (amount due within one year) 70.17 62.19
b} Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 907.74 1,162.18
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 977.91 1,224.37
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For determination of the liability of the Group, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i Discount rate 6.83% 6.99%
Salary escalation rate 5.50% 5.50%
M ortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
‘ Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012 -14) (2012 -14)

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan (X in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2021 Year 31 March 2020
a) Apnl 2021 — March 2022 7017 | Aprl 2020 — March 2021 03.40
b) April 2022 — March 2023 31.08 | Apal 2021 — March 2022 57.56
c) April 2023 — March 2024 31.80 | Apnl 2022 — March 2023 26.53
d} Apnl 2024 — March 2025 18.94 | Apnl 2023 — March 2024 54.94
€) April 2025 — March 2026 26.60 | Apnl 2024 — March 2025 39.27
f April 2026 — March 2027 65.65 | April 2025 — March 2026 40.18
o) Apnl 2027 onwards 733.70 { Apnl 2026 onwards 1,851.60
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity (% in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 977.90 1,224.37
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (53.38) (74.62)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 61.37 81.76
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 977.90 1,224.37
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 60.93 82.07
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {53.39) (75.52)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not matertal and hence impact of change not calculated.

Note — 46
Share based payments

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited Employees Stock Options Scheme 2008 (11}

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Holding Company established the Tndiabulls Real Estate 1.imited Employees
Stock Options Scheme - 2008 (IT) (“IBREL ESOS-II” or “Plan-II""). Under Plan 11, the Holding Company issued equity
settled options to its eligible employees and of its subsidiary companies to subscribe upto 2,000,000 stock options
representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of T 2 each in the Holding Company, at an exercise price of ¥
110.50 per option, being the closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as at 29 January
2009. The stock options so granted, shall vest in the eligible employees within 10 years beginning from 31 January 2010,
the first vesting date. The stock options granted under each of the slabs, are exercisable by the option holders within a
peniod of five years from the relevant vesting date.
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Following is a sutninary of options granted under the plan:

Particulars 31 March 2621 31 March 2020
Opening balance 126,000 165,000
Granted dunng the vear ,
Exercised during the vear - -
Forfeited duning the vear 48,000 39,000
Closing balance 78,000 126,000
Vested and exercisable 78,000 126,000

Weighted average share exercised price during the year ended 31 March 2021: ¥ Nil (31 March 2020: T Nil)

The fair value of the option under Plan I using the black scholes model, based on the following parameters is ¥ 62.79 per

option, as certified by an independent valuer.

Particulars Plan-11
Fair market value of option on the date of grant T62.79
Exercise price T110.50
Expected volatility 86%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date Nil
Expected option life {weighted average) 10.5 Years
Expected dividend yield 3.92%
Risk free interest rate 6.50%

The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data of the Holding Company's shares listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited Employees Stock Options Plan 2010 (111)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Holding Company have given
their consent to create, issue, offer and allot to the eligible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, stock options not exceeding 30,000,000 in number, representing 30,000,000 equity shares of face value of 2
each of the Holding Company, accordingly the Employee Stock Option Plan - 2010 (“IBREL ESOP 2010” or “Plan-
IIT™)) has been formed. As per the scheme exercise price will be the market price of the equity shares of the Holding
Company, being the latest available closing price, prior to the date of grant ot as the case may be decided by the board of
directors or compensation committee. During the year ended 31 March 2016, board of directors of the Holding Company
at its meeting held on 26 June 2015, re-granted (original grant was of date 14 November 2015) under the “Indizbulls Real
Estate Limited Employees Stock Options Plan - 20107, 10,500,000 stock options to eligible employees of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of ¥ 2 each in the
Holding Company, at an exercise price of ¥ 54.50, being the closing market price of previous day on the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. The stock options so granted, shall vest within 5 years beginning from 26 June 2016, the first
vesting date. The options vested under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the relevant

vesting date.

Following is a summary of options granted under the plan —

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 1,708,788 6,042,950
Granted during the vear - -
Exercised dunng the year - 3,983,587
Forfeited dunng the vear 263,100 350,575
Closing balance 1,445,688 1,708,788
Vested and exercisable 1,445,688 28,668

Weighted average share exercised price during the year ended 31 March 2021: ¥ Nil (31 March 2020: 2 119.29)
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The fair value of the option under Plan I1I using the black scholes model, based on the following parameters is T 34.30
per option, as certified by an independent valuer.

Particulars Plan —IT1
Fair market value of option on the date of grant T 34.30
Exercise poce T 54.50
Expected volatility B9%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each vestung date Nil
Expected option life (weighted average} 8 Years
Expected dividend yield 3.45%
Risk free interest rate 8.03%

The expected volatility was determined based on histerical volatility data of the Holding Company's shares listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited Employees Stock Options Plan 2011 (IV)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the board of directors and shareholders of the Holding Company have given their
consent to create, 1ssue, offer and allog, to the chigible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies,
stock options not exceeding 15,000,000 in number, representing 15,000,000 equity shares of face value of 32 each, and
accordingly the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2011 (“IBREL ESOS 20117} has been formed. As per the scheme
exercise price will be the market price of the equity shares of the Holding Company, being the latest available closing
price, prior to the date of grant or as may be decided by the board or compensation commuttee. However, compensation
committee of the board has not yet granted any options under IBREL ESOP 2011 Scheme.

Note — 47
Group information

Information about subsidiaries

The mformation about subsidianies of the Holding Company is as follows. The below rable includes the information
about step down subsidiapies as well.

Proportion of Propottion of
Name of subsidiacy tncorporion | intereocasat | inerest

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Aedos Real Estate Company Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Airmid Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Airmid Properties Lumited India 100.00% 100.00%
Airmid Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albasta Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albasta Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albasta Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albasta Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albasta Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albina Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Albina Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Amadis Land Development Lirited India 100.00% 100.00%%
Angina Properties Limited India 1H00.00% 100.00%
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Proportion of Proportion of
Name of subsidiary inconportion | interest 2o nt | imerens ani
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Angles Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Apesh Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Apesh Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Apesh Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ashkit Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Athena Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Athena Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Athena Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Athena Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Auvrora Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Bridget Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Catherine Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ceres Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ceres Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Cetes Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ceres Land Development Limited India 1060.00% 100.00%
Ceres Properties Limired India 100.00% 100.00%
Chloris Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Citra Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Citra Propertes Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Cobitis Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.60%
Cobitis Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Corus Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Devona Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Devona Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Devona Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Diana Infrastructure Limited Incha 100.00% 100.00%
Diana Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Edesia Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Edesia Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Edesia Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Elena Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Elena Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fama Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fama Construction Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fama Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fama Intrastructure Limited India 1060.00% 100.00%
Fama Laad Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fama Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
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Proportion of Proportion of
Name of subsidiary Countryof | ownecship _ownership
incorporation interest as at interest as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Flora Land Development Lumited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fornax Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Fornax Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Galium Builders And Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Hecate Power and Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.060%
Hermes Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Hermes Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
IB Assets Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
IB Holdings Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Buildcon Limired India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Commercial Assets Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Commerecial Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Commercial Properties Limited [ndia 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Commercial Properties Management Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Communication Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Engineering Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Hotel Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Housing and Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Housing and Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Housing Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Industrial Infrastructure Limited India 89.01% 89.01%
Indiabulls Infraestate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Infrastructure Projects Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Infratech Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Land Holdings Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Lands Limited [ndia 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Multiplex Services Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Natural Resources Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Projects Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Real Estate Builders Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Real Estate Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Realty Company Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Software Parks Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ivonne !nfrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Juventus Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Juventus Estate Limited India 100.00% . 100.00%
Juventus Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
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Proportion of Propoertion of
rshi
Name of subsidiary incoporation | imercot x| imeren aai
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Juventus ]and Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Juventus Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Katlash Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Kaltha Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Karakoram Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Karakoram Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Kenneth Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lakisha Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lavone Builders And Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lenus Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lenus Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lenus Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Linnet Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Linnet Developers Limited Ind:a 130.00% 100.00%
Linnet Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Linnet Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Linnet Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Loon Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lorena Budders Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
l.orena Constructions Limired India 100.00% 100.00%
Lorena Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lorena Infrastructure Limited India 100.00%, 100.00%
Lorena Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lonta Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lucina Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lucina Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lucina Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lucina Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Lucina Land Development Limited India 100.00% 1006.00%
Lucina Properties Limited India 100.00%a 100.00%
Mabon Constructions Limited India 100.00% 160.00%
Mabon Infrastmcture Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Mabon Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Majesta Builders Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Majesta Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Majesta Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Majesta Infrastrucrure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Majesta Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Makala Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
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Proportion of

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary incorponion | imercorasat | intermat seh
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Manjola [nfrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Manjola Real Estate Limited [ndia 100.00% 100.00%
Madana Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Mariana Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Mariana Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Matiana Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Milkyway Buildeon Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Netissa Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nerissa Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nerissa Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nerissa Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nerissa Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgid Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgiri Infraestate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgiri Infrastructure Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgin Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgini Infrastructure Projects Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgin Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgini [and floldings Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgiri Lands Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nilgir Resources Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Noble Realtors Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Paidia Infrastructure Limited Incia 100.00% 100.00%
Parmida Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Parmida Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Parmida Propetties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Platane Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene Builders and Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene [nfrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Selene Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sentia Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sentia Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sentia Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sentia Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sepset Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sepset Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
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Propottion of Proportion of
Name of subsidiaty _ Country ?f . ownership . ownership
incorporation interest as at interest as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Serida Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Serida P’ropertes Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Serpentes Constructions [Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Shivalik Properties Fimited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sophia Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sophia Real Estate Litnited India 100.00% 100.00%
Sylvanus Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Tapir Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Tapir Land Development Limmted India 100.00% 100.00%
Tefia Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Trton Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
'T'riton Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Friton Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
T'riton Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Varali Constructions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Varali Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Varali Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Varali Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Varah Real Estate Limired India 100.00% 100.00%
Vindhyachal Buldwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Vindhyachal Developers Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Vindhyachal Infrastructure Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Vindhyachal Land Development Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Vonnie Real Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Zeus Builders And Developers Limited [ndia 100.00% 100.00%
Z.eus Buildwell Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Z.eus Estate Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Zeus Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ananca Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Amston Investments Limited : Maunitus 100.00% 100.00%
Adston Investments Sub C Limited Mauritius 100.00% 100.00%,
Brenformexa Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Dev Property Development Limuted Isle of Man 100.00% 100.00%
Foundvest Lunited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Grand Limated Jersey 100.00%% 100.00%
CGrapene Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Properaes Investment Trust Singapare 100.00% 100.00%
Indiabulls Property Management Trustee Pre. Limited. Stngapore 100.00% 100.00%
M Holdco 1 Limited Mauritius 100.00% 100.00%
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Propottion of Proportion of
Name of subsidiary . Country ?f ) ownership ) ownership
incotpotation interest as at interest as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A Holdeo 2 Limuted Mauritius 100.00% 100.00%
M Hoidco 3 Limited Mauritius 100.00% 100.00%
Navilith Holdings Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Shoxell Holdings Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00%
Note — 48

®

{1)

(i)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had sold the entire stake in Cenrary Limited (which
indirectly owns Hanover Square property, London) to Clivedale Overseas lLimited, an entitr owned by the
Promoters, for an aggregate consideration of ¥ 183,693.00 Lakhs (GBP 200 Million), based on an independent
valuation and accordingly, the Group has recognized gain on sale amounting to ¥ 2,347.33 lakhs in the consolidated
financtal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Duning the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had sold the remaining stake in existing joint venture companies
namely Indiabulls Properties Private Limited (including its subsidiary Opcore Services Limited (formerly Indiabulls
Realty Developers Limited)) and One International Centre Private Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Real
Estate Company Private Limited) (both owning assets in Mumbai) and Yashita Buildcon Limited (including its
subsidiary Concepts International India Prvate Limited) and One Qube Realtors Limited (formerly Ashkit
Properties Limuted) (both owning assets in Gurugram) to the entities controlled by Blackstone Group Inc.
(‘Blackstone’) for an aggregate consideration of  271,700.00 lakhs and accordingly, the Group has tecognized gain
on sale amouinting to T 78,054.65 lakhs in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had executed definitive transaction agreement with
entity controlled by the Blackstone Group Inc. (Purchaser’) to divest its 100% stake in one of the subsidiary
company namely Marniana Infrastructure Limited (Marana’), which holds commercial asset at Gurgaon at a
consideration of ¥ 13,564.93 lakhs. As part of the said transaction, the Holding Company has divested partial stake
of the Holding Company in Mariana which has resulted in loss of control in Marana and accordingly Mariana has
sbeen de-consolidated resultng in loss amounting o ¥ 223.69 lakhs recognised in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. Further, the remaining investment had also been classified as held for
sale.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Indiabulls Infraestate Limited, one of the wholly owned subsidiary
companies of the Group had entered into definitive transaction agreement and had sold one of the commercial
asset/developments at Mumbai to one of the entity controlled by the Blackstone Group Inc. (Purchaser’) for a
consideration of T 67,500.00 lakhs. Part of this consideration had been settled by transferring existing lability
pertaining to debentures of T 45,815.06 lakhs. Additionally, accrued liability of ¥ 36,000.00 lakhs pertaining to
government expenses had also been extinguished in connection with this transaction. Accordingly, the Subsidiary
Company had recognized related revenue of T 103,500.00 lakhs and charged off the inventory of T 87,287.51 lakhs
in respect of said commercial asset/development, in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Note — 49

8y

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had sold its entire stake in one of its wholly owned
subsidiaries, namely Lakisha Real Estate Limited for an aggregate consideration of  2,079.21 lakhs and accordingly,
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the Group had recognised gain on sale amounting to T 3,106.06 lakhs in the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 3t March 2020.

() During the vear ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had sold its entiee stake in its wholly owned

subsidiary, Loon Land Development Limited for an aggregate consideration of T 5.00 lakhs.

(iify During the year ended 31 March 2020, the group had sold the entire stake in a subsidiary namely IPMT Limited, to

Clivedale Overseas Limited, an entity owned by the Promoters, for an aggregate consideravon of GBD 1.

MNote — 50

Subsidiaries with matetial non-controlling interest (‘NCI’)

The group includes following subsidiaries, with matertal non-controlling interests, as mentioned below:

[Description Country 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[ndiabulls Industrial Infrastructure Limited India 10.99% 10.99%

The summarised financial information of the subsidiaries before inter-group eliminations are set out below:

Indiabulls Industrial Infrastructure Limited

Balance sheet (® in lakhs)
Description 31 March 2021 3 Match 2020
INon-current assets 13,789.42 14.477.71
Current assets 14,124.99 13,164.83
[Total assets 27,914.41 27,642.54
INon-current liabihiges 17,081.17 17,242.12
Current liabilities 402.50 348.20
[T'otal liabilities 17,483.67 17,590.32
INet assets/ total equity 10,430.74 10,052.22
Attributable to:
Controlling interests 9,284.40 8,947.48
Non-controlling interests 1,146.34 1,104.74

Statement of profit and loss (T in lakhs)

escription 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue and other income 1,311.05 1,226.61
Profit for the year 356.32 380.73
T'otal comprehenstve income 378.18 380.67
[Attnbutable to non-controlling interests 41.60 41.29

Cash flow information (% in lakhs)
[Description 31 March 202t 31 Masch 2020
Cash used in operating activities {218.39 (210.98)
Cash flow from investing activities 219.10 21016
[Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 0.71 {0.82)
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Note — 51

Information about erstwhile Joint Ventures

.No Name of Entity Principal Country of |Proportion of | Proportion
activities incorporation/ | ownership jof ownership
principal place | (%) as at 31 |(%) as at 31
of business March 2021 | March 2020
1 One International Centre Prvate Real estate India - -
Limited (formetly Indiabulls Real Estate |development and
Company Prvate Limited) {from 29 leasing
M larch 2018 to 25 September 2019)
2 [Indiabulls Properties Private Iimited [Real estate India - -
from 29 March 2018 to 25 September  [development and
2019) leasing
3 Opcore Services Limited (formerly Maintenance of India - -
[ndiabulls Realty Developers Limited)  Jreal estate
from 29 March 2018 to 25 September  [properties
2019)
4 One Qube Realtors Limited (formerly  [Real estate India - -
Ashkit Properties Limited) (from 28 development and
December 2018 to 25 September 2019)  fleasing
% [Yashita Buildcon Limited (from 28 Maintenance of India - -
December 2018 to 25 September 2019)  [real estate
roperties
6 Concepts International India Private Real estate India - -
Limited (from 28 December 2018 to 25 development and
Beptember 2019) leasing
Summansed financial information for joint ventures — (X in lakhs)
escription 31 March 2021 31 March 2020*
Share of loss including other comprehensive income in joint ventures {net) - {(46,419.22)
— Material
Share of profit including other comprehensive income in joint ventures - 138.27
net) - Non-material
Total share of loss from joint ventures {including other - (46,280,95)
comprehensive income)

* Numbers are included till the date of safe of stake ie. 25 5. eprember 201 9.
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‘The tables below provide summarnsed financial information for erstwhile joint ventures. The information disclosed
reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the erstwhile joint ventures.

X in lakhs)
Particulars Indiabulls Properties Private One International Centre
Limited Private Limited (formerly
known as Indiabulls Real
Estate Company Private
Limited)
31 March 2021 Till 25 31 March 2021 Til 25
September 2019 September
2019
Statement of profit and loss
Revenue - 18,531.07 - 16,082.33
Interest income - 1,675.55 - 2,057.70
Other income - 291.58 - 94.19
Total revenue (A) - 20,498.20 - 18,234.22
Cost of revenue - 13,022.55 - 1,757.19
Employee benefit expense N 2.00 .
Finance costs - 3,711.02 - 6,719.18
Depreciation and amortisation - 1,821.62 - 1,731.12
Other expense 8,447.02 - 1,320.73
Total expenses (B) - 27,004.21 - 11,528.84
(Loss)/profit befote tax (C = A-B) - (6,506.01% - 6,706.00
Tax expense (D) - 869.05 - 48.59
{Loss)/profit fot the year (E = C- - (7,375.06) - 6,656.79
D)
Other comprehensive income (F) - (37,406.58) - (54,839.03)
Total comptehensive income - (44,781.64) - {(48,182.24)
(E+F)
Share of (loss)/profit for the year - (22,390.82) - (24,091.12)
(X in lakhs)
[Particulars One Qube Realtors Limited Concepts Intetnational India
(formerly Ashkit Properties Private Limited
Limited}
31 March 2021 Till 25 31 March 2021 Till 25
September September
2019 2019
Statement of profit and loss
Revenue - - - 1,157.23
Other income - 2.67 - 20.57
Total revenue (A) - 2.67 - 1,177.80
Emplovee benefit expense - - - -
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® in lakhs)
articulars One Qube Realtors Limited Concepts International India
(formerly Ashkit Properties Private Limited
Limited)
31 March 2021 Till 25 31 Macch 2021 Till 25
September September
2019 2019
Statement of profit and loss
Finance costs - - - 658.61
Depreciation and amortisation - 1.37 - 162.89
Other expense - 44.57 - 297.91
Total expenses (B) - 45.94 - 1,119.49
(loss)/profit before tax (C = A-B) - {43.27) - 58.34
Tax expense {D) - (0.13) - (110.19)
(Loss)/profit for the year (E = C-D) - (43.19) - 168.53
Other comprehensive income (F) - - - .
Total comprehensive income (E+F) - 43.149) - 168.53
Share of (loss)/profit for the year - (21.57) - 84.29

Note ~ 52

Reconciliation of liabilities atising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows.

A. The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

(X lakhs)
Particulars Non-current
borrowings
{including current Cun'e.nt Total
.- borrowings
maturities and

interest accrued)
Net debt as at 01 April 2019 454,316.39 101,500.00 555,816.39
pl _ R
I‘ roceefis from currt?qt/non curtent  borrowings 78,498.10 101,500.00 179.998.10
{(including current maturities)
Repayment of current/non-current borrowings (114,732.70) (203,000.00) (317.732.70)

{including current maturities)

Non-cash movement atising on account of disposal of
subsidiaries

(145,781.18)

(145,781.18)

Non-cash movement ansing on account of

amortisation of upfront fees and others (345.38) ) (345.38)
Interest expense 51,927.29 - 51,927.29
Interest paid {51,401.22) - {51,401.22
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 272,481.30 - 272,481.30
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Proceeds from current/non-current  borrowings
{including current marunties)

126,214.00

8,000.00

434,214.00

Repayment of  current/non-current borrowings
{including current maturities)

(575,167.41)

(8,000.00)

(583,167.41)

Non-cash movement atising on account of

amortisation of upfront fees and others (284.13) i (284.13)
Interest expense 28,830.82 - 28,830.82
Interest paid (28,067.60) - (28,067.60)
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 124,006.98 - 124,006.98

B. The changes in the Group’s lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

(% in lakhs)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 (current and non-current) 5,339.90
Interest on lease liabilities 484.10
Payment of lease liabilities (2,072.95)
Impact on account of termination of lease contract during the year (226.26)
Non-cash movement 265.29
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 (current and non-current) 3,790.08
[nterest on lease liabilities 135.01
Payment of lease liabilines {826.03)
Impact on account of termination of lease contract during the year (3,029.50;
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (current and non-current) 69.56

Note —53

During the previous year ended 31 March 2020, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of the Holding Company at its
meeting held on 31 January 2020, have discussed and approved in-principally the proposal of the merger of certain on-
going, completed and planned residential and commercial projects of Embassy Property Developments Private Limited
(‘Embassy’} with the Holding Company. The Board had constituted a Reotganization Committee to examine and evaluate
the options to implement the aforementioned metger proposal, including appointment of valuers, merchant bankers, and
other intermediaries to prepare and present a draft scheme and related documents, including the valuation teports,
fairness opinion, share swap rato ete, to be placed before the Board for its consideration and final approval.
Additionally, Embassy has also reached at an advanced stage of discussions with certain foreign financial investors
(‘tnvestors’) for an investment of up to USD 200 million.

Subsequently in the Current year, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company had considered and approved the
proposal of merger of NAM Estates Private Limited ("NAM Estates”) and Embassy One Commercial Property
Development Private Limited ("NAM Opco™) both Embassy group entities with the Company (" Amalgamation"). The
proposed Amalgamation will be achicved through a cashless composite scheme of amalgamation of NAM Estates and
NAM Opco into the Company, in accordance with Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
framed thereunder, as amended, and the Secunties and Exchange Board of India circular no. CFI3/DIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated 10 March 2017, as amended and other applicable regulations and provisions, subject to necessary statutory and
other approvals ("Scheme"). Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the Holding Company will issue its equity shares, in
accordance with the approved share swap rauos, to the shareholders of NAM Estates and NAM Opco, which will include
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Fimbassy promoter and promoter entities, Embassy instirutional investors and other shareholders. For the proposed
Amalgamation and arriving to share swap ratio, IBREL is valued at ¥ 92,50 per share.
During the vear, the Scheme has been granted approval by Competition Commission of India ("CCl") and SEBI/Stock

exchanges,

Note — 54

The proposed buy-back of Equity Shares of the Holding Company has been withdrawn by the board during the current
financial year.

The buy-back was announced after the Holding Company obtained approval of Board of Directors {'the Board") to buy-
back up 1o 5 crore fully paid-up equity shares of face value 2 2 each of the Holding Company, representing approximately
11% of 1ts total existing paid-up equity capital, at T 100 per equity share, aggregating to total buyback size of T 50,000
lakhs, through the “Tender Offer” route, as prescribed under SEBI {(Buy-Back of Securides) Regulations, 2018 and the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, as amended (hereinafter referred to as the “Buyback”), post completion
of scheme of arrangement of Chennai assets.

Note — 55

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Indiabulls Infraestate Limited, one of the wholly owned subsidiary companies of
the Group had recorded cancellation of multiple units in its project. The related revenue of ¥ 87,791.17 lakhs and cost of
¥ 47,073.97 lakhs had been recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. These
units had been cancelled based on the tetms of the agreement entered between the patties on account of non-payment of
certain outstanding dues, pertaining to those units. The refunds ansing of these cancellations had been duly paid to the
customers/lenders where these units were mortgaged.

Note — 56

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had received the approval of the National Company Law
Trbunal (‘Hon’ble NCLT’), Principal Bench, New Delhi to the Scheme of Arrangement ('the Scheme') berween
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited (‘petitioner/transferee company’), India Land and Propetties Limited (‘transferor
company’), Indiabulls Infrastructure Limited (‘resulting company’) and their respective shareholders and creditors,
pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Holding Company has
filed the Scheme with Registrar of Companies (‘ROC") on 19 March 2020. Pursuant to the Scheme, duning the financial
vear 2019-20, the Holding Company had acquired redeemable preference shares amounting to ¥ 45,000.00 lakhs issued by
one of the wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company and other assets amounting to ¥ 1,520.00 lakhs from the
transferor company. The approval of the Scheme was part of overall transaction to divest 100% stake in resulting
company {owning Chennai assets). Further, the Holding Company has also valued the remaining stake in resulting
company {classificd as assets held for sale) at fair value and thus, recognising net gain on the said transaction amounting
to T 21,406.90 lakhs in the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020.

Note — 57

Segment Reporting
The Group's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Group. As per
Indian Accounting Standard 108 as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified
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in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group operates in one teportable business segment Le. real estate project
advisory and construcuon and development of infrastructure/real estate projects and is pnmarily operating in India and
hence, considered as single geographical segment.

Note — 58

Dunng the previous year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had received a fixed consideration amounting to ¥
13,707.00 lakhs as full and final settlement against one of its projects. As a result of this, the lolding Company had
surrendered and relinquished all 1ts rights, ttes and interest of any nature in respect of the said project. Accordingly, the
Holding Company had recognized revenue of 2 13,707.00 lakhs and written off the carrying cost of the inventory of %
7,042.57 as cost of sales in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note — 59

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Secunty, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the
Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the
Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are under
active consideration by the Ministty. Based on an initial assessment by the Group, the additional impact on Provident
Fund contributions by the Group is not expected to be material, whereas, the likely additional impact on Granuty
hability/ contributions by the Group could be material. The Group will complete their evaluation once the subject rules
are notified and will give appropriate impact in the financial results in the period in which, the Code becomes effective
and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note — 60

During the year, one of the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group has advanced an interest-bearing sum of ¥ 22,500.00
lakhs to a party outside the group of which ¥ 22,500.00 lakhs is outstanding as at 31 March 2021. During the previous
year, two of the wholly owned subsidiares of the Group had advanced an interest-bearing sum of T 105,141.00 lakhs to
parties outside the group of which 2 89,755.26 lakhs is outstanding as at 31 March 2020 (inclusive of interest on such
loans amounting to ¥ 5,847 26 lakhs). Based on the terms of these loans, confirmarions received by the management from
these third parties and recoverability assessment done by the management, no impairment has been considered necessary
in these consolidated financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)
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Note — 62

The pandemic of Corona Virus (COVID-19) has caused unprecedented havoc to the economic activity all around the
Globe. The complete lock down announced on 24 March 2020 by the Government of India brought the wheels of
economic activity to 2 grinding halt. The operations are slowly and gradually resuming and expected to reach pre —
COVID 19 level in due course of time. The Group is continuously and closely observing the unfolding situatich and will
continue to do so. The Group has considered the possible impact of COVID-19 in prepating the financial results
including the tecoverable value of its assets and its liquidity position based on internal and extemal information upto the
date of approval of these financial statements.

Note 63

Previous year numbers have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary.
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